

Official Gazette

City of Spokane, Washington

Statement of City Business, including a Summary of the Proceedings of the City Council

Volume 112 **JANUARY 12, 2022** Issue 2



MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

MAYOR NADINE WOODWARD

COUNCIL PRESIDENT BREEAN BEGGS

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

JONATHAN BINGLE (DISTRICT 1)

MICHAEL CATHCART (DISTRICT 1)

LORI KINNEAR (DISTRICT 2)

KAREN STRATTON (DISTRICT 3)

BETSY WILKERSON (DISTRICT 2)

ZACK ZAPPONE (DISTRICT 3)

The Official Gazette

(USPS 403-480)

Published by Authority of City Charter Section 39

The Official Gazette is published weekly by the Office of the City Clerk 5th Floor, Municipal Building, Spokane, WA 99201-3342

Official Gazette Archive: https://my.spokanecity.org/gazettes/

To receive the Official Gazette by e-mail, send your request to:

clerks@spokanecity.org

Inside this Issue	
MINUTES	6
HEARING NOTICES	13
GENERAL NOTICES	13
Ordinances	14
JOB OPPORTUNITIES	35
NOTICES FOR BIDS	38

The Official Gazette

USPS 403-480 0% Advertising Periodical postage paid at Spokane, WA

POSTMASTER:

Send address changes to:

Official Gazette
Office of the Spokane City Clerk
808 W. Spokane Falls Blvd.
5th Floor Municipal Bldg.
Spokane, WA 99201-3342

Subscription Rates:

Within Spokane County: \$4.75 per year Outside Spokane County: \$13.75 per year

Subscription checks made payable to:

City Treasurer

Address Change:

Official Gazette Office of Spokane City Clerk 808 W. Spokane Falls Blvd. 5th Floor Municipal Bldg. Spokane, WA 99201-3342

Minutes

MINUTES OF SPOKANE CITY COUNCIL

Monday, January 3, 2022

BRIEFING SESSION

The Briefing Session of the Spokane City Council held on the above date was called to order at 3:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers in the Lower Level of the Municipal Building, 808 West Spokane Falls Boulevard, Spokane, Washington.

The regularly scheduled Spokane City Council 3:30 p.m. Briefing/Administrative Sessions and the 6:00 p.m. Legislative Session were held virtually and streamed live online and aired on City Cable 5. Pursuant to Governor Jay Inslee's Fifteenth Updated Proclamation 20-28.15, dated January 19, 2021, all public meetings subject to the Open Public Meetings Act, Chapter 42.30 RCW, are to be held remotely and the in-person attendance requirement in RCW 42.30.030 has been suspended until termination of the state of emergency pursuant to RCW 43.06.210, or until rescinded, whichever occurs first. Proclamations 20-28, et seq, were amended by the Washington State Legislature to recognize the extension of statutory waivers and suspensions therein until termination of the state of emergency pursuant to RCW 43.06.210 or until rescinded.

While all public meetings must continue to be held remotely, an option for an additional inperson meeting component is permitted consistent with the business meetings requirements contained in the Miscellaneous Venues guidance incorporated into Proclamation 20-25, et seq. At this time, the City Council has decided to continue its meetings with remote access only and to not include an in-person attendance component.

The public was encouraged to tune in to the meeting live on Channel 5, at https://my.spokanecity.org/citycable5/live, or by calling 408-418-9388 and entering an access code when prompted.

Roll Call

On roll call, Council President Beggs and Council Members Bingle, Cathcart, Kinnear, Stratton, Wilkerson, and Zappone were present. (Council President Beggs was in attendance in the Council Chambers and also participated in the meeting via WebEx. Council Members Bingle, Cathcart, Kinnear, Stratton, Wilkerson, and Zappone attended the meeting via WebEx.)

City Attorney Mike Ormsby (WebEx) and City Clerk Terri Pfister (in Chambers) were also virtually present for the meeting. Director of Policy and Government Relations Brian McClatchey was absent.

Advance Agenda Review

The City Council received an overview from staff on the January 10, 2022, Advance Agenda items.

Action to Approve January 10, 2022, Advance Agenda

Following staff reports and Council inquiry and discussion regarding the January 10, 2022, Advance Agenda items, the City Council took the following action (pursuant to Council Rule 2.1.B):

Motion by Council Member Wilkerson, seconded by Council Member Cathcart, **to approve** the January 10, 2022, Advance Agenda; **carried unanimously**.

ADMINISTRATIVE SESSION

Current Agenda Review

The City Council considered the January 3, 2022, Current Agenda.

Special Budget Ordinance C36163

Upon review and discussion of Special Budget Ordinance C36163, the following action was taken:

Motion by Council Member Cathcart, seconded by Council Member Wilkerson, **to defer** Special Budget Ordinance C36163 (providing appropriation authority for "first-out" funding supporting housing, employment, a COVID-19 safe community, and administration support) for one week (to January 10, 2022); **rejected 2-5.**

After further Council discussion, the following action was taken:

Motion by Council Member Wilkerson, seconded by Council Member Kinnear **to accept** substitute version of Special Budget Ordinance C36163 (as circulated earlier today by City Council Budget Manager Matt Boston); **carried unanimously**.

Resolution 2022-0001

Motion by Council Member Kinnear, seconded by Council Member Cathcart, **to defer** Resolution 2022-0001—establishing year-long 20 mph speed limits on streets adjacent to certain parks—to February 7, 2022; **carried unanimously.**

CONSENT AGENDA

Upon Unanimous Voice Vote (in the affirmative), the City Council approved Staff Recommendations for the following items:

Purchases of miscellaneous waterworks products in support of the 2022 service season from:

- a. Core & Main (Spokane Valley, WA) for Item 3: Restrained Glands, Item 6: Copper Pipe, Item 8: Ductile Iron Pipe, and Item 11: Hydrant Parts—\$593,688.56 (incl. tax). OPR 2022-0003 / BID 5446-21
- b. HD Fowler Company (Spokane Valley, WA) for Item 1: Couplings, Item 2: Repair Clamps, Item 4: Tapping Sleeves, Item 5: Ductile Iron Fittings, Item 9: Gaskets, Item 12: Air Valves, and Item 13: Check Valves—\$139,128.18 (incl tax). OPR 2022-0004 / BID 5446-21
- c. M&L Supply Company (Spokane, WA) for Item 7: HDPE Pipe and Item 10: All Thread—\$3,438.46 (incl. tax). OPR 2022-0005 / BID 5446-21

Total purchase value across all suppliers: \$736,255.19 (incl. tax). (Council Sponsor: Council President Beggs)

Value Blanket with Metal & Cable Corp, Inc. (Twinsburg, OH) for the purchase of Magenemount MA30-2 Magnet Mounts on an as-needed basis—\$200,000. OPR 2022-0006 / BID 5544-21 (Council Sponsor: Council Member Stratton)

Value Blanket with Cabot Norit Activated Carbon (Marshall, TX) for the purchase of activated carbon for the Waste to Energy Facility from January. 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022—annual cost not to exceed \$100,000 (incl. tax). OPR 2022-0007 / RFQ 5541-21 (Council Sponsor: Council President Beggs)

Amendment to the Sole Source Value Blanket with Dresser Rand Company (Seattle, WA) for the purchase of turbine generator overhaul parts from March 1, 2021 through February 28, 2023—additional amount not to exceed \$500,000 (plus tax). OPR 2021-0150 (Council Sponsor: Council President Beggs)

Five-Year Value Blanket Order with Coleman Oil for bulk gas and diesel fuels for various city-owned fueling sites—estimated annual cost \$15,000,000 (incl. tax) OPR 2022-0008 / ITB 5531-21 (Council Sponsor: Council President Beggs)

Low Bid of Landmark Structures I, L.P. (Fort Worth, TX) for the SIA Additional Reservoir—\$13,270,000. An administrative reserve of \$1,327,000, which is 10% of the contract price, will be set aside. OPR 2022-0009 / ENG 2018050 (West Hills Neighborhood) (Council Sponsor: Council President Beggs)

Contract Extension No. 2 of 4 with Desimone Consulting Group (Seattle, WA) for Federal Lobbying Services—\$80,000. OPR 2020-0506 (Council Sponsor: Council President Beggs)

Contract with Spokane COPS to help identify and remove both permanent and temporary (snow and ice) obstructions on sidewalks included on Designated School Access Routes—\$50,000. OPR 2022-0010 (Council Sponsor: Council President Beggs)

Five-Year Interlocal Agreement with Spokane County for Detention Services/Geiger Work Crew Services. OPR 2022-0012 (Council Sponsor: Council Member Stratton)

Fourth Amendment to the City of Spokane Universal Transit Access Pass Agreement (U-TAP)—\$31,426. OPR 2017-0727 (Council Sponsors: Council Members Stratton and Wilkerson)

Report of the Mayor of pending:

Claims and payments of previously approved obligations, including those of Parks and Library, through December 10, 2021, total \$11,554,151.61 (Check Nos. 583035-583167; ACH Payment Nos. 97216-97507), with Parks and Library claims approved by their respective boards. Warrants excluding Parks and Library total \$11,031,647.26. CPR 2021-0002

Claims and payments of previously approved obligations, including those of Parks and Library, through December 17, 2021, total \$13,206,457.43 (Check Nos. 583168-583295; ACH Payment Nos. 97508-97715), with Parks and Library claims approved by their respective boards. Warrants excluding Parks and Library total \$11,911,710.45. CPR 2021-0002

Payroll claims of previously approved obligations through December 11, 2021: \$7,274,880.05. (Check Nos. 561654-561762). CPR 2021-0003

Payroll claims of previously approved obligations through December 25, 2021: \$7,868,273.85. (Check Nos. 561764-561858). CPR 2021-0003

City Council Meeting Minutes: December 13, 2021. CPR 2021-0013

Council Recess/Executive Session

The City Council adjourned at 5:09 p.m. No Executive Session was held. The City Council reconvened at 6:00 p.m. for the Legislative Session.

LEGISLATIVE SESSION

Roll Call

On roll call, Council President Beggs, and Council Members Bingle, Cathcart, Kinnear, Stratton, Wilkerson, and Zappone were present. (Council President Beggs was in attendance in the Council Chambers and also participated in the meeting via WebEx. Council Members Bingle, Cathcart, Kinnear, Stratton, Wilkerson, and Zappone attended the meeting via WebEx.)

City Clerk Terri Pfister (in Chambers) was also virtually present for the meeting. Director of Policy and Government Relations Brian McClatchey was absent.

WELCOME

Council President Beggs welcomed to the City Council newly elected Council Members Bingle and Zappone. In addition, he congratulated Council Member Wilkerson on her election to City Council.

MAYORAL PROCLAMATION

January 2022 Slavery and Human Trafficking Prevention Month in Spokane

January 11, 2022 National Human Trafficking Awareness Day

Council Member Stratton read the proclamation. Millini Goodman, Victim Advocate at Lutheran Community Services Northwest, virtually accepted the proclamation. The proclamation encourages citizens to start by believing and to become informed on this growing problem and to be vigilant and to report suspicious activity and to work towards solutions to end trafficking in all of its forms in our community.

There were **Administrative Reports**.

BOARD AND COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS

Reappointments to Health Sciences and Services Authority (CPR 2017-0033), Design Review Board (CPR 1993-0069), Arts Commission (CPR 1981-0043), Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (CPR 2000-0031), Plan Commission (CPR 1981-0295), Historic Landmarks Commission (CPR 1981-0122)

Upon Unanimous Voice Vote, the City Council **approved** the following reappointments:

Health Sciences and Services Authority (CPR 2017-0033)

• Reappointment of Alex Knox to a four-year term on the Board of Directors of the Health Sciences and Services Authority, to serve from December 1, 2021, to November 30, 2025.

Design Review Board (CPR 1993-0069)

• Reappointment of Grant Keller to a three-year term on the Design Review Board to serve from January 1, 2022, to December 31, 2024.

Arts Commission (CPR 1981-0043)

• Reappointment of Chuck Horgan and Katie Patterson Larson to a three-year term on the Arts Commission to serve from January 1, 2022, to December 31, 2024.

Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (CPR 2000-0031)

• Reappointment of James (Jamie) Rand to a three-year term on the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee to serve from December 15, 2021, to December 14, 2024.

Plan Commission (CPR 1981-0295)

• Reappointment of Greg Francis to a four-year term on the Plan Commission to serve from January 1, 2022, to December 31, 2025.

Historic Landmarks Commission (CPR 1981-0122)

• Reappointment of Sylvia Tarman, Amanda Paulson, Austin Dickey, and Ray Rast to a three-year term on the Historic Landmarks Commission to serve from January 1, 2022, to December 31, 2024.

There were no Council Committee Reports.

LEGISLATIVE AGENDA

SPECIAL BUDGET ORDINANCES

Special Budget Ordinance C36163 (as substituted during the 3:30 p.m. Administrative Session) (Council Sponsors: Council President Beggs and Council Member Wilkerson)

Subsequent to an overview by Council President Beggs, public testimony, and Council commentary, the following action was taken:

Upon Unanimous Roll Call Vote, the City Council **passed Special Budget Ordinance C36163** amending Ordinance No. C36161, passed by the City Council December 13, 2021, and entitled, "An ordinance adopting the Annual Budget of the City of Spokane for 2022, making appropriations to the various funds of the City of Spokane government for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022, and providing it shall take effect immediately upon passage", and declaring an emergency and appropriating funds in:

American Rescue Plan Fund

- 1) Increase appropriation by \$13,665,000:
- A) \$6,000,000 for affordable housing projects in the city.
- B) \$2,000,000 for a down payment assistance program for first-time homeowners with incomes below 80 percent of average median income.
- C) \$1,000,000 for sub-area planning to increase housing along transportation corridors.
- D) \$300,000 for an eviction legal defense and education program in the city.
- E) \$1,000,000 for funding to childcare providers.
- F) \$1,000,000 for employment support in the arts.
- G) \$1,120,000 for play equipment and bathroom upgrades in city parks, prioritizing parks located in the lowest income census tracts.
- H) \$400,000 for a construction pre-apprenticeship educational program targeted towards individuals involved in, or at risk of being involved in, the criminal justice system.
- \$300,000 for an Equity Navigator Service to aid the City in ensuring that funds spent will serve our diverse and historically underserved communities to be spent before 12/31/2024.
- J) \$305,000 for internal financial personnel to be used for the administration and execution of the city's direct aid share of the American Rescue Plan Act funding to be spent before 12/31/2024.

- K) \$120,000 for services to be rendered from an outside firm to ensure the City is approving appropriately eligible projects/programs within the guidance set forth by the US Department of Treasury to be spent before 12/31/2024
- L) \$120,000 solely for Community Engagement and Project Coordinator personnel to assist Council and Administration in the American Recovery Plan Act spending.

(This action arises from the need to provide appropriation authority for "first-out" funding supporting housing, employment, a COVID-19 safe community, and administration support.) (Council Sponsors: Council President Beggs and Council Member Wilkerson)

Ayes: Beggs, Bingle, Cathcart, Kinnear, Stratton, Wilkerson, and Zappone

Nays: None Abstain: None Absent: None

There were no Emergency Ordinances.

RESOLUTIONS

For Council action on Resolution 2022-0001, see section of minutes under 3:30 p.m. Administrative Session.

Resolution 2022-0002 (Council Sponsors: Council Members Kinnear and Cathcart)

Subsequent to an overview by Council President Beggs; the opportunity for public testimony, with no individuals requesting to speak; and Council commentary, the following action was taken:

Upon Unanimous Roll Call Vote, the City Council **adopted Resolution 2022-0002** establishing a yearlong 30 mph speed limit along High Drive after the expiration of a two-year pilot project.

Ayes: Beggs, Bingle, Cathcart, Kinnear, Stratton, Wilkerson, and Zappone

Nays: None Abstain: None Absent: None

Resolution 2022-0003 (Council Sponsor: Council Member Cathcart)

Subsequent to a brief overview by Council President Beggs and an opportunity for public testimony and Council commentary, with no individuals requesting to speak, the following action was taken:

Upon Unanimous Roll Call Vote, the City Council **adopted Resolution 2022-0003** setting hearing before the City Council for February 7, 2022, for the vacation of various right-of-ways in the plat of North Minnehaha as requested by LB Stone Properties.

Ayes: Beggs, Bingle, Cathcart, Kinnear, Stratton, Wilkerson, and Zappone

Nays: None Abstain: None Absent: None

Resolution 2022-0004 (Council Sponsor: Council Member Cathcart)

Subsequent to a brief overview by Council President Beggs and an opportunity for public testimony and Council commentary, with no individuals requesting to speak, the following action was taken:

Upon Unanimous Roll Call Vote, the City Council **adopted Resolution 2022-0004** setting hearing before the City Council for February 7, 2022, for the vacation of the alley between Pacific and Second, from Sherman to Sheridan, as requested by Bob Cooke.

Ayes: Beggs, Bingle, Cathcart, Kinnear, Stratton, Wilkerson, and Zappone

Nays: None Abstain: None Absent: None

Resolution 2022-0005 (Council Sponsor: Council President Beggs)

Subsequent to an opportunity for public testimony and Council commentary, with no individuals requesting to speak, the following action was taken:

Upon Unanimous Roll Call Vote, the City Council **adopted Resolution 2022-0005** declaring Hydromax USA as a sole source provider for the condition assessment of 2.2 miles of pipeline for the

City Water Department's Havana Transmission Main and authorizing the City to enter into a contract—not to exceed \$100,000 (incl. tax if applicable).

Ayes: Beggs, Bingle, Cathcart, Kinnear, Stratton, Wilkerson, and Zappone

Nays: None Abstain: None Absent: None

Resolution 2022-0006 (Council Sponsor: Council President Beggs)

Subsequent to a brief overview by Council President Beggs and an opportunity for public testimony and Council commentary, with no individuals requesting to speak, the following action was taken:

Upon Unanimous Roll Call Vote, the City Council **adopted Resolution 2022-0006** approving Settlement Agreement and General Release of all Claims of Neil Johnson for \$108,396.48 agreed to by the parties.

Ayes: Beggs, Bingle, Cathcart, Kinnear, Stratton, Wilkerson, and Zappone

Nays: None Abstain: None Absent: None

FINAL READING ORDINANCES

Final Reading Ordinance C35924 (Tabled during the May 3, 2021, Legislative Session) (Council Sponsor: Council Member Cathcart)

Subsequent to a brief introduction by Council President Beggs; an opportunity for public testimony, with no individuals requesting to speak; and Council commentary, the following action was taken:

Upon 6-1 Roll Call Vote, the City Council **passed Final Reading Ordinance C35924** granting Yellowstone Pipe Line Company, a corporation, chartered in the State of Delaware, the nonexclusive right, privilege, authority, and franchise to construct, operate, maintain, remove, replace, and repair existing pipeline facilities together with equipment and appurtenances thereto, for the transportation of petroleum products and byproducts in the public right-of-way within and through the City of Spokane, Spokane County, WA.

Ayes: Bingle, Cathcart, Kinnear, Stratton, Wilkerson, and Zappone

Nays: Beggs Abstain: None Absent: None

FIRST READING ORDINANCES

The following Ordinance was read for the first time, with further action deferred. There was an opportunity for public testimony on the first reading ordinances, with no individuals requesting to speak.

ORD C36137

Relating to establishing a new penalty for violations of the Building Code; and amending the Penalty Schedule – Building Construction found in Section 01.05.150 of the Spokane Municipal

Code. (Council Sponsor: Council President Beggs)

There were no Special Considerations.

There were no Hearings.

OPEN FORUM

The following individual spoke during Open Forum:

Anwar Peace

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the City Council, the Regular Legislative Session of the Spokane City Council adjourned at 6:56 p.m.

STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES City of Spokane Urban Experience Committee 11/8/21 – MINUTES

Attendance

City Employees: Garrett Jones, Teri Stripes, Colin Quinn-Hurst, Mike Sloon, Hannahlee Allers, CM Kate Burke, Eric Finch, Marlene Feist, Kirstin Davis, Inga Note, CM Betsy Wilkerson, CP Breean Beggs, CM Michael Cathcart, Margaret Hinson, CM Karen Stratton, CM Lori Kinnear, CM Candace Mumm, Corin Morse, Nick Hamad, Tonya Wallace, Brian McClatchey, Erik Poulsen, Seth Hackenberg

Non-City Employees: Jason Graf, Jody Qualley, Brandon Meiers, Bob Hilmes The meeting started at 1:17 pm.

Approval of Minutes:

The October 11th, 2021 meeting minutes were approved.

Agenda Items:

1. TOD Framework Study- Colin Quinn-Hurst and Jason Graf

Presentation, study that started last winter, on the third out of four phases. Colin introduced Jason and answered some questions from CM Mumm. Station area planning and access discussed. Three areas focused on and discussion on TOD potential. Next steps explained.

2. Rent Assistance Program Update- Margaret Hinson and Kirstin Davis

Kirstin shared her screen with presentation. Overview of T-RAP funds being accepted and dispersed. Spend down trends shared. Questions on a few organizations, the funds they requested, and comments on the RFP process.

3. Matrix Consulting Group Contract- Tonya Wallace

Tonya gave information on the RFP and selection process. CM Mumm gave some history with working with Matrix in the past.

4. Fish Lake Trail Connection to Centennial Trail- Inga Note

Presentation on the evaluation, route options, and estimated costs. Will be presenting at Parks Board this week.

5. Parks and Natural Lands Master Plan Update- Garrett Jones and Nick Hamad

Project update. Out of the four phases, currently on phase three. Overview of the parks, engagement, demographics, what they have learned, and some additional facts.

6. WSDOT Update on Trent Bridge and Altamont On-Ramp- Bob Hilmes and Jody Qualley

Bob and Jody introduced by CM Stratton, Jody shared a presentation with pictures of the Trent bridge, where progress is, and what is coming up. Questions and comments followed, additional questions can be sent to Shauna Harshman.

7. Building Permit/Construction Updates- Kris Becker

Kris will email the updates.

Update for this month removed.

Consent Items:

Item C MFTE Conditional Agreement Liberty Park Expansion pulled for some questions. CM Wilkerson asked Teri some questions. Consent items approved.

Executive Session:

There was no Executive Session.

Adjournment:

The meeting was adjourned at 3:03pm.

Hearing Notices

SPOKANE CITY-COUNTY HISTORIC LANDMARKS AGENDA Wednesday, January 19, 2022 Webex Teleconference

I. Public Hearing: 3:00 P.M.

A. Certificate of Appropriateness (per SMC 17D.100.200):

1. Chancery Building – 1023 W Riverside Avenue
The Chancery is located in both the downtown boundary area for demolition review and is a contributing
property in the Riverside National Register Historic District. The SHLC only has authority to review the
replacement new construction when an eligible property is proposed for demolition.

In order to comply with public health measures and Governor Inslee's *Stay Home, Stay Safe* order, the Spokane Historic Landmarks Commission meeting will be held by Webex Teleconference

Members of the general public are encouraged to join the on-line meeting using the following information:

To participate via video, on your computer or mobile device, follow the link found in the agenda located on the City of Spokane website at:

https://static.spokanecity.org/documents/bcc/commissions/spokane-city-county-historic-landmarks-commission/agendas/2022/01/shlc-agenda-2022-01-19.pdf

To participate by phone

Call: 1-408-418-9388

Enter: 2486 499 3450 followed by # when prompted for a meeting number or access code

Enter # when prompted for an attendee ID

Meetina

Password: 2VSpkmMMe24

General Notices

REGULAR MEETING NOTICE/AGENDA THE CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 9:30 a.m. – JANUARY 18, 2022

Notice is hereby given that, pursuant to Governor Jay Inslee's **Revised** Proclamation **20-25.15**, dated **January 19, 2021**, all public meetings subject to the Open Public Meetings Act, Chapter 42.30 RCW, are to be held remotely and that the in -person attendance requirement in RCW 42.30.030 has been suspended until termination of the state of emergency pursuant to RCW 43.06.210, or until rescinded, whichever occurs first. Proclamations 20-28, et seq, were amended by the Washington State Legislature to recognize the extension of statutory waivers and suspensions therein until termination of the state of emergency pursuant to RCW 43.06.210 or until rescinded.

While all public meetings must continue to be held remotely, an option for an additional in-person meeting component is permitted in Phase 3 regions consistent with the business meetings requirements contained in the Miscellaneous Venues guidance incorporated into Proclamation 20-25, et seq. At this time, the Civil Service Commission has decided to continue its' meetings with remote access only and to not include an in-person attendance component.

Temporarily and until further notice, the public's ability to attend Civil Service Commission meetings is by remote access only. In-person attendance is not permitted at this time. The public is encouraged to tune in to the meeting as noted below.

The regularly scheduled Spokane City Civil Service Commission Meeting at 9:30 a.m. on Tuesday, January 18, 2022 will be held virtually. Some members of the Civil Service Commission and staff will be attending virtually. The public is encouraged to tune in to the meeting by calling 1-408-418-9388 and entering the access code 2485 041 5095 when prompted.

AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION

9:30 A.M. JANUARY 18, 2022

CITY HALL - CITY COUNCIL BRIEFING CENTER 808 W. SPOKANE FALLS BLVD., SPOKANE, WA 99201

- 1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
- 2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
 - a. November 16, 2021 Minutes
- 3. CHIEF EXAMINER UPDATE
- 4. NEW BUSINESS
 - a. Resolution 2022-01: Classification Actions
- OTHER BUSINESS
- 6. ADJOURN

Note: The meeting is open to the public, with the possibility of the Commission adjourning into executive session.

Ordinances

These ordinances are published in this issue of the Official Gazette pursuant to passage by the Spokane City Council. It should be noted that these ordinances may be subject to veto by the Mayor. If an ordinance is vetoed by the Mayor, the Mayoral veto will be published in a subsequent issue of the Official Gazette.

ORDINANCE C35924

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING YELLOWSTONE PIPE LINE COMPANY, A CORPORATION, CHARTERED IN THE STATE OF DELAWARE, THE NONEXCLUSIVE RIGHT, PRIVILEGE, AUTHORITY AND FRANCHISE TO CONSTRUCT, OPERATE, MAINTAIN, REMOVE, REPLACE, AND REPAIR EXISTING PIPELINE FACILITIES, TOGETHER WITH EQUIPMENT AND APPURTENANCES THERETO, FOR THE TRANSPORTATION OF PETROLEUM PRODUCTS AND BYPRODUCTS IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY WITHIN AND THROUGH THE CITY OF SPOKANE, SPOKANE COUNTY, WA.

WHEREAS, Yellowstone Pipe Line Company (hereinafter "Grantee") has applied for a nonexclusive Franchise to operate and maintain a Petroleum pipeline and related Facilities within and through the City of Spokane (hereinafter the "City"), together referred to as the "Parties" and, each individually referred to as a "Party" and,

WHEREAS, the Spokane City charter and Washington State statutes authorize the City to grant nonexclusive Franchises by ordinance;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SPOKANE DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section I. <u>Definitions of Franchise Terms</u>.

For the purposes of this Franchise and all exhibits attached hereto, the following terms, phrases, words and their derivations shall have the meaning given herein. When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense include the future, words in the plural include the singular, and words in the singular include the plural. Words not specifically defined in this section shall be given their common and ordinary meaning.

1.1 <u>Aquifer</u> shall mean the Spokane-Rathdrum aquifer, a federally designated "sole source" aquifer that serves as the City of Spokane's sole source of drinking water.

- 1.2 <u>Baseline Assessment</u> shall mean a Facility assessment task required by Jurisdictional Agency pipeline safety regulations, as developed for the Grantee's Facilities within the Franchise Area.
- 1.3 <u>City's Representative</u> shall mean the person designated by the Mayor to administer this Franchise for the City. The City's Representative interprets and applies all Franchise provisions on behalf of the City and issues Written enforcement orders pursuant thereto, but may not waive any Franchise term.
- 1.4 <u>Construct or Construction</u> shall mean the Grantee's actions removing, replacing, and repairing existing pipeline (s) and/or Facilities and may include, but is not limited to, digging and/or excavating for the purposes of removing, replacing, and repairing existing pipeline(s) and/or Facilities.
- 1.5 <u>Control Center</u> shall mean the headquarters of the Grantee's pipeline monitoring system that maintains twenty-four (24) hour surveillance of the Grantee's Facilities within the Franchise Area and responds to Emergency Incidents using electronic controls to activate pipeline shut-off valves to prevent the release of Petroleum Products.
- 1.6 <u>Effective Date</u> shall mean the date designated herein, after passage, approval and legal publication of this Ordinance, as required by City Charter, and acceptance by Grantee, upon which the rights, duties and obligations shall come into effect and the date from which the time requirement for any notice, extension and/or renewal will be measured.
- 1.7 <u>Emergency Incident</u> shall mean a circumstance involving a release of Petroleum Products from the Grantee's Facilities within the Franchise Area that, at the time of discovery, requires immediate response to protect persons or property from substantial injury or damage to the public health and safety, including damage to the environment or the Aquifer.
- 1.8 Environmental Law shall include all federal and state statutes and regulations applicable to the Operation Maintenance and Construction of the Grantees facilities including but not limited to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. § 6901, et. Seq.; the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §9601 et. Seq.; the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. § 1801 et seq.; the Federal Water Pollution control Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1257 et seq.; the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.; the Toxic Substance Control Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2601 et seq.; the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, 7 U.S.C. § 136 et seq.; the Occupational Safety and Health Act, 29 U.S.C. § 651 et seq.; the Washington Hazardous Waste Management Act, Chapter 70.105 RCW; and the Washington Model Toxics Control Act, Chapter 70.105D RCW, and all other applicable federal, state or local statutes, codes, regulations, or ordinances.
- 1.9 Emergency Incident Response Plan shall mean a Written plan, as required by Jurisdictional Agencies, for an immediate response by the Grantee to an Emergency Incident to prevent damage to persons or property.
- 1.10 <u>Facilities</u> shall mean the Grantee's pipeline system, lines, valves, mains, and appurtenances used to transport or distribute Petroleum Product(s) within the Franchise Area. Facilities include any existing pipeline as of the date of this Agreement as well as any components which may be modified, constructed, or improved consistent with the terms of this Agreement.
 - 1.11 Franchise shall mean this Franchise ordinance and any amendments, exhibits, or appendices to this Franchise.
- 1.12 <u>Franchise Area</u> shall mean that area within the Public Right-of-Way, and certain designated public property, within the jurisdictional boundaries of the City, including any areas annexed hereafter, during the terms of this Franchise, where Grantee has installed its existing Facilities or any new Facilities approved by the City under the provisions of this Franchise.
- 1.13 <u>Hazardous Substance</u> shall mean any hazardous, toxic, or dangerous substance, material, waste, pollutant, or contaminant as defined by federal or state Environmental Laws and the applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies, specifically including Petroleum and Petroleum Products and their by-products, residue, and remainder.
- 1.14 <u>High Consequence Area</u> shall mean an area, as defined in the Code of Federal Regulations, over which Grantee's Facilities are located; and specifically including the area over the Aguifer within the Franchise Area.
 - 1.15 Improvement or Improve shall mean change to the Facilities or installation of new Facilities.
- 1.16 <u>Jurisdictional Agency or Agencies</u> shall mean any federal, state or local agency with regulatory authority over the Facilities and Operations of the Grantee within the Franchise Area, acting now, or hereafter, to the extent of its lawful scope of authority.

- 1.17 <u>Maintenance or Maintain</u> shall mean examining, testing, inspecting, repairing, maintaining, and replacing the existing pipeline(s) and/or Facilities or any part thereof as required and necessary for safe Operation within the Franchise Area.
- 1.18 Operate or Operations shall mean the use by the Grantee of Facilities for the transportation, distribution, and handling of Petroleum Products or Petroleum by-products within and through the Franchise Area.
- 1.19 <u>Pipeline Corridor</u> shall mean the pipeline pathway through the Franchise Area which the Facilities of the Grantee are located, including any Public Rights-of-Way, designated public property, and/or other easement over and through private property, (as more specifically described in Exhibit "A" and in Section 2.1 (b)).
- 1.20 Petroleum or Petroleum Products shall include any and all types of liquid Petroleum, Petroleum by-products and liquid Petroleum Products including but not limited to gasoline, diesel fuel, and aviation jet fuel, all limited as consistent with the design specifications of Grantee's Facilities, as specified by the regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies.
- 1.21 <u>Premises</u> shall mean that portion of the Public Right-of-Way, or other Public Property, upon which Grantee's Facilities are now, or hereafter, Operated or Improved.
- 1.22 <u>Procedures Manual</u> shall mean an Operation, Maintenance, or Emergency Incident Response Procedures Manual prepared by the Grantee for the operation of Facilities as required by the regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies.
- 1.23 <u>Public Project</u> shall mean those City Improvement Projects required to be constructed in, near, under, or over the Public Right-of-Way, or on Public Property, in the Franchise Area by any City department or other local, state, or federal governmental agency, or for the benefit of the public. Public Projects do not include private development activities or projects primarily for the benefit of private persons or corporations.
- 1.24 <u>Public Needs</u> shall mean the City's need for use of the Public Right-of-Way including: public travel, emergency vehicle access, public utilities, traffic signalization, street lighting, street trees, shrubbery, and other similar public uses.
- 1.25 <u>Public Property</u> shall mean the present and/or future property owned or leased by the City within the present and/or future corporate limits, or jurisdictional boundaries of the City that the City has designated for the Grantee's Facilities.
- 1.26 <u>Rights-of-Way</u> shall mean the surface and the space above and below all streets, roadways, highways, avenues, courts, lanes, alleys, sidewalks or utility easements, and similar areas as laid out, platted, dedicated, acquired or improved and maintained within the present jurisdictional boundaries of the City and as such corporate limits may be hereafter extended.
- 1.27 Third party Audit shall mean an audit of reports and plans filed by the Grantee with Jurisdictional Agencies as required by federal regulations and environmental laws, such audit shall be performed by a pipeline consultant that is independent of both the Grantee and the City and does not have any clients from either Party.
- 1.28 <u>Wellhead Influence Zone</u> shall mean any area in the vicinity of and up-gradient from any public water supply well which now exists and/or may be constructed in the future. The City's Wellhead Influence zones currently in the vicinity of Grantee's Facilities are outlined in Exhibit "B".
- 1.29 <u>Writing or Written</u> shall mean hard copy or where approved by the City Representative, any other suitable permanent electronic information transmission and storage media.

Section 2. Grant of Franchise Authority.

2.1 Purpose of Franchise.

- (a) The City hereby grants to Grantee, a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, and which is authorized to transact business within the State of Washington, this non-exclusive Franchise to Construct, Operate, Maintain and Improve its existing Facilities as a liquid Petroleum Product transport system within the Franchise Area.
- (b) The purpose of this Franchise is to establish the conditions relating to the Grantee's use of the Franchise Area.
- (c) Within 14 days following acceptance of this Franchise, Grantee shall file with the City a Pipeline Corridor Map, in a format acceptable to the City's Representative, to be attached as Exhibit "A" to this Franchise. Exhibit "A" shall depict the Pipeline Corridor information, as specified in Section 1.19, and the location of all Facilities along the Pipeline Corridor within the Franchise Area. This Pipeline Corridor Map shall be maintained and updated at all times

by Grantee to reflect any changes in Grantee's Facilities and such changes shall be filed with the City Clerk on a yearly basis. Any changes in the route of the Pipeline Corridor of Grantee's facilities shall be filed with the City within 14 days of the changes.

2.2 Scope of Franchise.

- (a) <u>Existing Facilities</u>. This Franchise is granted subject to the police powers, land use authority, and franchise authority of the City and is conditioned upon the terms and conditions contained herein and the Grantee's compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws and the regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies.
- (b) New Facilities. No new Facilities shall be installed by Grantee in the Public Right-of-Way, or across Public Property, within the Franchise Area without the express Written consent of the City. Any replacement of existing Facilities (other than routine replacement of minor components or appurtenances) or minor pipeline installations (less than 1000 feet within any 12-month period) in the Public Right-of-Way or Public property must be approved by the City's Representative in Writing, whose approval will not be unreasonably withheld, unless such changes are required in an emergency to protect the environmental or public safety. The City Representative or other Jurisdictional Agencies must approve all actions on Public Property. Major installations (1000 feet or more) of new Facilities in the Franchise Area must be approved by Resolution of the City Council.
- (c) <u>Facilities located Outside Public Right-of-Way</u>. This Franchise grants permission only for the use of the Public Right-of-Way; in any areas outside the Public Right-of-Way, Grantee is responsible to make separate arrangements with the City Representative for the use of Public Property as a right-of-way for Facilities; all such arrangements must be in Writing. The City Representative cannot grant interests in land or approve contract modifications.
- (d) <u>Facilities on Park Property</u>. This Franchise does not in any way expand or diminish the rights of either the City or the Grantee with respect to any previous authorization granted by the Spokane City Park Board for any portions of Grantee's Facilities located on City Park property.
- (e) This Franchise authorizes no new above ground installations in the Franchise Area except as expressly approved in Writing by the City Representative.

2.3 Franchise is Non-Exclusive.

- (a) The City specifically reserves all rights to control the Public Right-of-Way and its other Public Property, including, without limitation, the right to grant additional Franchises, easements, licenses and permits to others. The City is not responsible to defend Grantee's franchise interests against any other right-of-way user(s) or adverse claimant(s) now or hereafter arising, but accepts and acknowledges its intent, as stated herein, to grant this Franchise to Grantee and not to revoke or impair such grant except as provided herein or otherwise as authorized by law. To this end, the City further agrees to avoid granting any other Franchise, license, easement, or permit that would violate the standards set for location of utilities in the Public Right-of-Way where the same would unreasonably interfere with Grantee's permitted use of the Public Right-of-Way or Public Property for the Operation and Maintenance of its Facilities within the Franchise Area. This agreement does not create any right of action for damages or other relief on the part of the Grantee relating to this Franchise or the value thereof.
- (b) This Franchise shall in no manner prohibit the City or limit its power to perform Public Projects or other work upon its Public Rights-of-Way, or on any Public Properties, or make any necessary changes, relocations, repairs, maintenance, or improvement thereto. Nor shall it prevent the City from using any of the Public Rights-of Way or any Public Properties, or any part of them, as the City may deem necessary, from time to time, including the dedication, establishment, maintenance and improvement of new rights-of-way or other Public Properties of every type and description.
- 2.4 <u>Franchise Conditioned on Grantee's Compliance</u>. This Franchise is conditioned upon Grantee's full compliance with the terms and conditions contained herein and with all Environmental Laws and regulatory programs of Jurisdictional Agencies that currently exist or may hereafter be enacted applicable to the Operation, Maintenance, Construction or Improvement of Grantee's Facilities within the Franchise Area.
- 2.5 <u>Franchise Does Not Create Liability for City</u>. By granting this Franchise, the City is not assuming any risks or liabilities arising from Grantee's Operation, Maintenance, Construction or Improvement of Facilities within the Franchise Area under the authority of this Ordinance; any and all such risks or liabilities shall be solely and separately borne by Grantee. Grantee agrees and covenants to, at its sole cost and expense, take all necessary and prudent steps to protect, support, and keep safe from harm, its Facilities within the Franchise Area, or any part thereof, when necessary to protect the public health and safety. The Parties understand and agree that the City is not responsible for errors or omissions in information provided to the Grantee by the City.

2.6 <u>Franchise is Not Warranty of Title</u>. This Franchise is intended to convey only a limited right and interest in the use of the Premises within the Public Right-of-Way and on other Public Property. This Franchise is not a warranty of the City's title or interest in the Premises in the Public Rights-of-Way or any other Public Property; and therefore, none of the Franchise rights granted herein shall affect the City's jurisdiction over its property, streets or Public Rights-of-Way or any other Public Property.

2.7 Vacation of Public Right-of-Way; Retention of Easement.

- (a) This Franchise grant remains subject to the City's power to vacate or release any City interest in the Public Right-of-Way, or other Public Property under the City's ownership or control, without such action creating any obligation of payment to Grantee of any consideration for loss of Franchise use.
- (b) In the event of the vacation of a Public Right-of-Way, or any portion thereof, by the City under the provisions of RCW Chapter 35.79, Grantee may participate in the street vacation process to protect its interests and may request the City to reserve an easement for Grantee in the Premises within the Public Right-of-Way area which is proposed to be vacated.
- (c) Grantee accepts full responsibility for all reasonable, documented City costs, including staff time, in dealing with Grantee's request to retain an easement for its Facilities in a vacated street including making payment for the value of any easements granted or reserved.
- 2.8 <u>Franchise Grants No Rights in Other Public Property.</u> This Franchise does not and shall not convey any right to Grantee to install its Facilities on, under, over, across, or to otherwise use City owned or leased Public Properties of any kind, either within or outside the Premises along the Pipeline Corridor, without the express separate Written authorization of the City.
- 2.9 <u>Municipal Powers Not Affected by Franchise</u>. Authority granted under the terms of this Franchise to Grantee to maintain its Facilities in the Public Right-of-Way within the Franchise Area remains at all times subject to the requirements of, and the exercise of, the City's tax and police powers.

Section 3. Term and Renewal or Extension of Franchise.

- 3.1 <u>Term of Franchise</u>. Each of the provisions of this Franchise shall become effective upon the Effective Date as set forth in Section 19.12, and shall remain in effect for twenty-five (25) years from the Effective Date.
- 3.2 <u>Failure to Renew Franchise</u>. If the Parties fail to formally, mutually renew this Franchise prior to the expiration of either the Franchise term, or any previously agreed extension; then this Franchise may be extended on a year-to-year basis (or such term as the Parties may mutually agree in Writing) until a renewed Franchise is executed, not to exceed two (2) years from the date of expiration. If the Parties are thereafter not able to agree on a new Franchise, this Franchise will terminate. Either Party may give written notice to the other Party at least one hundred eighty (180) days in advance of the expiration of the initial Franchise term (or the expiration of any previously-agreed extension) of its intent not to renew the Franchise.
- 3.3 At any time not more than three (3) years or less than one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the expiration of this Franchise, either Party may request an extension of the Franchise for an additional ten (10) year renewal period.

Section 4. Assignment and Transfer of Franchise.

4.1 No Transfer of Franchise without City Consent. Except in cases involving sales of equity or other beneficial interests in Grantee, this Franchise shall not be sold, assigned, transferred, leased or otherwise disposed of by the Grantee, either in whole or in part, either by voluntary or involuntary sale, merger or consolidation; nor shall title to the Franchise, either legal or equitable, or any right, interest or property therein pass to, or vest in, any other person or entity, without the prior Written consent of the City Council as provided in Paragraph 4.2, acting by ordinance or resolution, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. Such consent shall not be deemed to waive any rights of the City to subsequently enforce non-compliance issues relating to this Franchise that existed at or before the time of the City's consent.

4.2 Requirements of City Approval of Transfer of Franchise.

(a) No transfer, including any assignment, sale or lease of the Franchise shall be approved by the City unless the assignee or transferee demonstrates to the satisfaction of the City that it has the legal, technical, financial, and industry experience and qualifications to carry on the activities of the Grantee under the requirements of this Franchise Ordinance.

- (b) The City has the right to conduct an expeditious investigation to satisfy itself of the proposed assignee's qualifications to perform all requirements of the Franchise. All reasonable expenses incurred by the City in conducting such investigation shall be paid by Grantee.
- (c) Prior to the City's consideration of a request by Grantee to consent to a Franchise assignment, the proposed assignee must file with the City a Written promise to unconditionally accept all terms of the Franchise, effective upon assignment of the Franchise.
- (d) Any transfer or assignment, sale or lease of this Franchise without the prior Written Consent of the City shall be void and result in the termination or revocation of the Franchise.
- (e) No assignment, including any sale or lease of this Franchise granted by the City shall be effective until the assignee or lessee shall have filed in the office of the City Clerk an instrument, duly executed, reciting the fact of the sale or lease, accepting the terms of this Franchise, and agreeing to perform all the conditions required of the Grantee. The assignee or lessee shall file a bond in such amount and with such conditions as the City Council may require which bond shall run to the City as obligee, with sureties satisfactory to the City Council, and shall obligate said Party, to discharge all obligations and liabilities imposed upon the Grantee by the Franchise.
- 4.3 <u>City Failure to Enforce Franchise No Bar to Future Enforcement</u>. The City is under no obligation to undertake any investigation of the Grantee's state of compliance with Franchise obligations at the time of any assignment, and the failure of the City to insist on full compliance with any Franchise obligations prior to the transfer of the Franchise does not waive any right of the City to insist on full compliance by the assignee with all Franchise obligations thereafter.

Section 5. Compliance with State and Federal Laws.

- 5.1 Compliance with State and Federal Law a Material Term of Franchise.
- (a) Grantee's compliance with the requirements of all valid and applicable Environmental Laws and the regulations or regulatory orders of any Jurisdictional Agency applicable to the Maintenance, Operation, Construction and Improvement of its Facilities within the Franchise Area is a material term of this Franchise. This obligation shall include compliance by the Grantee with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations existing at the Effective Date of this Franchise, including, but not limited to, Title 49 Code of Federal Regulation, Part 195 Transportation of Hazardous Liquids, and any laws or regulations that may subsequently be enacted by any governmental entity with jurisdiction over Grantee and/or the Facilities.
- (b) Grantee stipulates that the Aquifer is a "High Consequence Area" and an "unusually sensitive area" as defined in applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies. Grantee agrees to maintain full compliance with applicable Environmental Laws and the requirements of all applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies regarding High Consequence Areas.

Section 6. Construction and Maintenance of Facilities.

- 6.1 <u>Application</u>. This Section 6 shall apply to Construction, Maintenance or Improvement of Facilities performed by Grantee in the Franchise Area.
 - 6.2 Permits Required for Construction and Maintenance Work.
 - (a) Except in the event of an Emergency Incident, Grantee shall first obtain all required and applicable permits from the City to Construct, Maintain, or Improve Grantee's Facilities within the Franchise Area. Such work shall only commence upon the issuance of all required permits by the City, which permits shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed after submission of a complete application in compliance with applicable City codes.
 - (b) In the event of an Emergency Incident, requiring immediate action by the Grantee for the protection of the pipeline(s) or Facilities, the City's property, or the property, life, health, or safety of any individual, the Grantee may take action immediately to correct the dangerous condition without first obtaining any required permit(s) so long as:
 - (1) Grantee informs the City Representative as soon as possible of the nature and extent of the Emergency Incident and the work to be performed prior to commencing the work if such notification is practical, or, where notification is not practical, the Grantee shall notify the City not later than the next business day, and
 - (2) Grantee shall, promptly thereafter, obtain any necessary permits for the Emergency work from the City or other Jurisdictional Agency as applicable and comply with any mitigation requirements or other conditions in the after-the-fact permit.

6.3 <u>Construction and Maintenance Work to Comply with Plans</u>. Except in the case of an emergency, prior to commencing any Construction and/or Maintenance work in the Franchise Area, the Grantee shall first file with the Grantor such detailed plans, specifications and profiles of the intended work as may be required by the Grantor. Grantor may require such additional information, plans and/or specifications as are in Grantor's opinion necessary to protect the public health and safety during the Construction and/or Maintenance work and for the remaining term of this Franchise.

6.4 Conduct of Construction, Maintenance and/or Improvement of Facilities.

- (a) Any work done by Grantee, in the Public Right-of-Way or on Public Property including work done at the Grantee's direction, or on its behalf, by contractors or subcontractors shall be conducted in such a manner as to avoid damage or interference with other utilities, drains, or other structures, and shall not unreasonably interfere with public travel, park uses, or other municipal uses and the free use of adjoining property, and so as to provide for the safety of persons and property. The Grantee's Construction, Maintenance, and/or Improvements shall be in compliance with all Environmental Laws and applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies.
- (b) Grantee agrees to avoid damage or interference with public utilities, drains or other structures in or near the Public Right-of-Way as well as unnecessary damage to the Public Right-of-Way or Public Properties, and to comply with the City's most current Pavement Cut Policy for Utility Trenches, in the performance of any Maintenance, Construction, and/or Improvement work on its Facilities in the Public Right-of-Way or on Public Property. Grantee is fully responsible to pay for any damage or interference with such structures, in accordance with the indemnification provision of Section 14.1.
- (c) All asphalt patches in the Public Right-of-Way installed by Grantee over its Facilities shall be continuously maintained by Grantee until the affected Public Right-of-Way area is repaved.
- (d) Grantee agrees that Public Needs or Public Projects have first priority in the use of the Public Right-of-Way or on other Public Property.
- 6.5 <u>Components of Facilities to Meet Regulatory Standards</u>. All pipe and any other fixtures or components used in the Construction, Maintenance and/or Improvement of Grantee's Facilities within the Franchise Area shall comply with all Environmental Laws and applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies.

6.6 Notice to be Given Prior to Construction and Maintenance.

- (a) Except in the event of an Emergency Incident, Grantee shall provide the City Representative Written notice at least ten (10) calendar days prior to any Construction, Maintenance and/or Improvement, or other substantial activity, other than routine inspections and Maintenance, by Grantee, its agents, employees or contractors on Grantee's Facilities in the Public Right-of-Way or on Public Properties within the Franchise Area. Grantee shall comply with City ordinances respecting obtaining Right-of-Way obstruction or access permits to comply with this provision.
- (b) Grantee shall provide reasonable notice to those owners or other persons in control of property abutting the Premises in the Franchise Area when the Maintenance, Construction and/or Improvement of Grantee's Facilities will affect access to, or otherwise impact, the property of such other persons and shall coordinate this effort to notify with the City's Representative.
- 6.7 <u>City's Right to Condition Permits</u>. Unless such condition or requirement is in conflict with Environmental Laws or the applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies, the City may condition the granting of any permit, or other approval that is required under this Franchise, in any manner reasonably necessary for the safe use and management of the Public Right-of-Way and/or other Public Property including, but not limited to, requirements of bonding, maintaining proper distance from other utilities, protecting the continuity of pedestrian and vehicular traffic and protecting any improvements on Rights-of-Way and/or other Public Property, private facilities and public safety.

6.8 Grantee to Restore Premises.

- (a) Whenever necessary, after performing Construction, Maintenance or Improvement work on any of Grantee's Facilities within the Franchise Area, the Grantee shall, without delay, and at Grantee's sole expense, remove all debris and restore the Premises within the Public Right-of-Way, and/or on other Public Property, to as good or better condition as it was before the Construction, Maintenance and/or Improvement work began, and in full compliance with the City's current Policies for construction work in the Public Right-of-Way or on Public Property.
- (b) Grantee shall replace any property corner monuments, survey or reference hubs that were disturbed or destroyed during Grantee's Construction, Maintenance or Improvement work in the Premises covered by this Franchise. Such restoration shall be done in a manner consistent with Environmental Laws and the applicable

regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies and under the supervision of the City Representative and to the City's reasonable satisfaction.

- 6.9 One Number Location Service. Grantee shall continuously be a member of the State of Washington "One-Call" Locator Service as provided under RCW Chapter 19.122, as now adopted or hereafter amended, and shall comply with all such applicable rules and regulations in performing Construction, Maintenance or Improvement work on its Facilities within the Franchise Area.
- 6.10 Markers to Locate Facilities. Grantee shall place and maintain line markers for all existing and new Facilities within the Franchise Area pursuant to the applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies within and along the Pipeline Corridor. If other "industry best practices" for line marking are developed as a method of alerting excavators to the presence of the pipeline, Grantee agrees to employ such new practices. The Grantee agrees to perform all Construction, Maintenance and/or Improvement work in compliance with revised industry standards in effect at the time of such work. During Construction, Maintenance and/or Improvement work, markers demarcating the location of Grantee's Facilities shall be placed on the surface of the Premises at least every one hundred (100) yards or as otherwise requested by the City so as to provide clear warning of the presence of the Grantee's Facilities but in a manner that does not interfere with public travel or other public uses of the Premises.
- 6.11 <u>Grantee to Fix Pipeline Location</u>. When the City or third Parties are engaged in Construction work in the Premises along the Pipeline Corridor as depicted in Exhibit "A" or within fifty (50) feet of the Premises, Grantee shall promptly respond to requests to locate the precise position of its Facilities. Grantee shall bear any costs associated with locating and marking its Facilities for a Public Project, and may recover costs for non-Public Projects as provided in Section 8.3.

6.12 As-Built Drawings of Facilities.

- (a) Upon acceptance of this Franchise by Grantee, Grantee shall provide the City with detailed as-built design drawings showing the size, depth, and location of all pipes, valves, gauges, and all other components of its Facilities within the Franchise Area at no cost to the City. It is understood that the location of the Facilities shall be verified by excavating the Premises if exact alignment is required. The information shall be provided in hard copy or electronic format acceptable to the City's Representative.
- (b) Within thirty (30) days of completing any Construction, Maintenance and/or Improvement work, installation of new Facilities, or any other substantial activity in the Public Right-of-Way or on Public Property within the Franchise Area, the Grantee shall provide the City with updated and corrected as-built drawings and a survey showing the location, depth and other characteristics of its new Facilities within the Franchise Area in like manner as with (a) above. Grantee shall confirm that as-builts previously provided to the City are still accurate.
- (c) The City agrees to make its best efforts to honor any reasonable request by Grantee that information provided by Grantee, including but not limited to, Grantees drawings, maps, or any proprietary information be protected as confidential under the following conditions:
 - (1) Grantee must make all requests for confidentiality in Writing and identify in advance all information it desires to be protected and submit such information to the City separately and never commingled with public information. Each page of such information, in hard or soft copy, must be indelibly marked "PRIVATE/CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS RESERVED BY YELLOWSTONE PIPE LINE COMPANY".
 - (2) If the City receives a Public Records request under RCW Chapter 42.56, (State Public Records Act) for such information so marked, it shall make every reasonable effort to protect confidentiality by notifying Grantee of the request. If the City is aware of any potential exemptions or exceptions to its disclosure obligations under the State Public Records law, it shall assert them, but no liability shall accrue to the City for any failure or oversight in doing so, each Party's obligation being limited to representing its own legal interests. Grantee must thereafter take immediate steps if it so desires to initiate litigation in Spokane County Superior Court to protect any confidentiality it wishes, or the City shall have no further obligation to protect the confidentiality request.
 - (3) Grantee recognizes that, as provided by RCW 42.56.060, the City is immune from any suit if it releases any public records, as defined by law, in a good faith attempt to comply with its obligations under the State Public Records Act.
- 6.13 <u>City Has No Obligation to Certify Sufficiency of Plans</u>. Nothing in this Franchise shall be deemed to impose any duty or obligation upon the City to determine the adequacy or sufficiency of Grantee's plans and designs for its Facilities or to ascertain whether Grantee's proposed or actual construction, testing, maintenance, repairs, replacement or removal work is adequate, or sufficient, or in conformance with the plans and specifications reviewed by the City, Environmental Laws or the applicable regulations of any Jurisdictional Agency.

6.14 Grantee Responsible for Construction Area.

- (a) Grantee shall be solely and completely responsible for its workplace safety and safe working practices on its job sites within the Franchise Area, including safety of all persons and property during the performance of any Construction, Maintenance and/or Improvement work, as required by Environmental Laws or the applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies.
- (b) In the event of a claim brought against Grantee by any person arising from Grantee's Construction, Maintenance and/or Improvement work on its Facilities within the Franchise Area or Grantee's occupation or use of the Public Right-of-Way and/or other Public Property under the terms of this Franchise Ordinance, Grantee is responsible for the prompt and fair resolution thereof, and shall not avoid this duty on the basis that any Construction, Maintenance, and/or Improvement activities undertaken by Grantee were being performed by an independent contractor, reserving always Grantee's rights to fully pursue subrogation claims not otherwise inconsistent with the requirements of this Franchise Ordinance including its right to pursue indemnification from a contractor.

Section 7. Operations, Maintenance, Inspection, Testing.

7.1 Grantee shall Operate, Maintain, inspect and test its Facilities in the Franchise Area in full compliance with Environmental Laws and the applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies as now enacted, or hereafter amended. Grantee represents that it has completed its Baseline Assessment, Integrity Management Plan, Encroachment Management Plan, Emergency Incident Response Plan, and all other reports and plans for all of its Facilities over the Aquifer within the Franchise Area, as required by the applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies.

Grantee agrees to maintain such items fully updated in strict compliance with the applicable requirements of all Jurisdictional Agencies.

7.2 Reports, Tests, Inspections.

- (a) Grantee agrees to test and inspect its Facilities within the Franchise Area in full compliance with Environmental laws and the applicable requirements of Jurisdictional Agencies and best management practices and industry standards.
- (b) Grantee further agrees to assist the City in obtaining from Jurisdictional Agencies copies of any test or inspection results, documents or reports required to be submitted to or reviewed by Jurisdictional Agencies or otherwise in accord with best management practices and industry standards. These documents may include a Baseline Assessment report, a Pipeline Integrity Management Plan, and Encroachment Management Plan, and an Emergency Incident Response Plan (see also Section 9.1), or any reports or studies submitted or required to be submitted to any Jurisdictional Agencies.

7.3 Grantee's Notice to City of Testing of Facilities.

- (a) The Grantee shall notify the City Representative in writing of any in-ground pipeline hydro test or other internal inspection conducted on the Grantee's Facilities within the Franchise Area at least ten (10) business days prior to said testing, except in an Emergency Incident, in which case, the Grantee agrees to notify the City as soon as is practicable under the circumstances, but no later than one business day after completion of any in-ground pipeline hydro test or other internal inspection following any Emergency Incident or discovery of any anomaly in the Grantees Facilities.
- (b) Federal regulations (e.g., 49 C.F.R. sec. 195.56) require that Grantee file a written report of a safety-related condition in Grantee's pipelines within five working days of determining that such a condition exists. Within five working days of filing such a report, Grantee will notify the City that a report has been made. Upon request from the City, Grantee shall furnish a copy of the report made to the Jurisdictional Agencies if allowed by law and, if not, reasonably assist the City in attempting to obtain such information from the Jurisdictional Agencies. In addition, upon request from the City, Grantee will provide any inspection findings by Jurisdictional Agencies regarding Grantee's pipelines in the Franchise Area.
- 7.4 <u>Technical Information Regarding Grantee's Facilities</u>. The Grantee shall provide to the City, upon Written request by the City's Representative, such information as may be needed to administer this Franchise; including, but not limited to, standard pipeline alignment data, for Public Project planning and Emergency Incident Response requirements, as presented to the Jurisdictional Agencies, including as-built drawings showing the approximate location of all Grantee Facilities within the Franchise Area. Grantee conducts robust Jurisdictional Agency-required evaluation of the pipeline and appurtenances in the Franchise Area on a five-year cycle, in addition to all of the inspection, maintenance, and operational requirements Grantee implements under its own integrity management programs. In each year following the

five-year cycle evaluation, Grantee will meet with City to discuss the results of the evaluation and corrective action, if any, arising from the evaluation.

7.5 <u>Independent Consultant.</u> Whereas, if the City retains an Independent Pipeline Consultant ("Consultant") agreeable to Grantee, whose agreement will not be unreasonably withheld, to perform an independent evaluation of the Pipeline and/or Facilities of Grantee or Third Party Audit of the Baseline Assessment and Plans described in Paragraph 7.1, which would be performed at City's expense, and the Consultant recommends that Grantee make modifications or additions to Grantee's Pipeline and/or Facilities, or to its Baseline Assessment or Plans. Grantee agrees to consider such recommendations in good faith provided that the recommendations are reasonably consistent with industry best practices and applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies. If Grantee declines to follow the Consultant's recommendations, Grantee shall provide a Written report to the City explaining its reasoning for not following the recommendations. Parties agree to comply with the Dispute Resolution provisions of Section 13 contained herein to resolve any dispute over whether to follow consultant's recommendations.

Section 8. Encroachment Management.

8.1 <u>Requirements of Encroachment Management Plan</u>. The Grantee's Encroachment Management Plan shall be developed in full compliance with all Environmental Laws and applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies and all valid federal, state, and local requirements regarding encroachment management and damage prevention, including the State of Washington "one-call" locator service law (RCW 19.122).

Grantee shall maintain a Written program to prevent damage to its Facilities from excavation activities, as required by the Environmental Laws and applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies.

8.2 <u>Inspections of surface conditions</u>. Grantee shall also conduct regular inspections of the surface conditions on or adjacent to the Pipeline Corridor, as required by the Environmental Laws and the applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies.

8.3 Encroachment Response Procedure.

- (a) Upon specific notification to Grantee of any planned construction activity which may involve excavation within twenty-five (25) feet of the Pipeline Corridor, or any other activity that may abnormally load its Facilities in the Franchise Area, by either the City or any third party, Grantee shall immediately mark the precise location of its Facilities before the construction or other activity commences.
- (b) Grantee shall provide a representative at its expense for Public Projects to inspect the construction or other activity when it commences, and periodically inspect the Premises thereafter to ensure that Grantee's Facilities are not damaged by the construction or other activity. Grantee shall also do this where needed for non-Public Projects, and may charge a reasonable fee, to be collected by Grantee from the private party requesting the work
- (c) Nothing herein shall affect the Grantee's obligation to comply with the requirements of Washington's Underground "one call" locate statute, RCW Chapter 19.122, as now adopted or hereafter amended.

8.4 Verification of Pipeline Location.

- (a) Upon the City's request, in connection with the design or construction of any Public Project, Grantee will verify the exact location (lateral and vertical) of its underground Facilities on the Premises within the Pipeline Corridor by excavating (pot holing) at no expense to the City. The request shall specify a reasonable response time in consideration of the nature of the request and difficulty to Grantee of providing such assistance. In the event Grantee performs such excavation, Grantee agrees to restore the disturbed Premises to the same or better condition as existed immediately prior to the excavation. Potholing may be required for non-Public Projects, at a reasonable cost of Grantee, to be collected by Grantee from the private party requesting the work.
- (b) Because precise damages are difficult to ascertain, for failure to respond within a specified response time, Grantee agrees to pay liquidated damages as provided in Section 12.1, except no liquidated damages apply before a ten (10) day period has elapsed without a satisfactory response.
- 8.5 <u>Inspection of Third Party Excavation</u>. If the Grantee becomes aware that a third party has conducted any excavation or other significant work that may have affected its Facilities, the Grantee shall conduct such inspections and/or testing of Facilities as is necessary to determine that;
 - (a) No direct or indirect damage was done to the Grantee's Facilities by the excavation and,
 - (b) The construction work or other activity did not abnormally load the Grantee's Facilities and,

(c) The Construction work or other activity did not impair the effectiveness of the Grantee's cathodic protection system. Grantee is responsible to coordinate with other persons with facilities in the vicinity of its Facilities so as to avoid adverse impacts of cathodic protection.

Section 9. Leaks, Spills, Ruptures, and Emergency Response.

9.1 Grantee Shall Have Remote Monitoring System.

- (a) Grantee shall maintain in place, at all times that Grantee's Facilities are located within the Franchise Area, a system for monitoring pressures and flows within its Pipeline and/or Facilities, from a Remote Control Center. The remote monitoring must be able to accurately detect pipeline leaks, spills or ruptures, as required by Environmental Laws and the applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies.
- (b) Grantee's Emergency Incident Response Plan shall designate Grantee's local emergency response officials and a direct 24-hour emergency telephone number for the Control Center operator, who shall be capable of immediate shutdown of Grantee's Facilities in the Franchise Area by use of a satellite controlled switch or other similar remote technology. Grantee shall, after being notified of an Emergency Incident, cooperate with the City Representative and make every effort to respond as soon as possible to limit damage from the Emergency Incident and protect the public's health, safety, and welfare.

CURRENT CONTROL CENTER 24 HOUR PHONE NUMBER: 877-267-2290 Grantee shall keep the City Representative and City Fire Marshall updated in Writing of any changes to this contact information.

- (c) The Grantee warrants that, throughout the term of this Franchise, it will make periodic updates to its Emergency Incident Response Plan in full compliance with Environmental Laws and the applicable requirements of Jurisdictional Agencies.
- (d) The Parties agree to meet annually to review the Emergency Incident Response Plan and Incident Response procedures as required by Environmental Laws and the applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies. Grantee shall coordinate this meeting with the City, other local public safety agencies and other interested parties.
- (e) The Grantee will, at all times, have available or have access to, sufficient Emergency Incident Response equipment and materials within the Franchise Area to properly and completely respond to any spill, leak, rupture or other release of Petroleum Products or Hazardous Substances from the Grantee's Facilities, in accordance with Environmental Laws and applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies or otherwise in accordance with best management practices and industry standards.
- 9.2 <u>Grantee Responsible for Costs of Clean-Up</u>. Except to the extent an Emergency Incident is shown to be proximately caused by the negligence of the City, Grantee shall be solely responsible for all reasonable and necessary costs incurred by City, County, local or State agencies in responding to any spill, leak, rupture or other release of Petroleum Products from its facilities that are required by Environmental Laws, including, but not limited to, detection and removal of contaminants from surface or subsurface soil or water, including sources of vapor intrusion and actual remediation costs. All such costs shall be considered extraordinary costs that shall not be borne by the City and shall not be considered administrative expenses of the City. Nothing in this section shall limit Grantee's rights or causes of action against any third party who may be responsible for such leak, spill, rupture, or other release of Petroleum Products or hazardous substances from Grantees Facilities.

9.3 Notice of Leak, Spill or Rupture From Grantee's Facilities.

- (a) In areas outside the City's Wellhead Influence Zone, Grantee shall notify the City in Writing within one (1) business day of its observation or detection of, any uncontained leak, spill, rupture or other release of Petroleum Products from its Facilities within the Franchise Area requiring notification to Jurisdictional Agencies.
- (b) In areas inside the City's Wellhead Influence Zone, the City shall receive telephonic notification immediately after the Emergency Incident is discovered and/or reported to Jurisdictional Agencies.
- (c) If requested by the City Representative in Writing, Grantee shall follow-up this notice within thirty (30) days with a Written report of the Emergency Incident, including, but not limited to, the date, time, amount, location, response, and remediation of the leak, spill, rupture or other release of Petroleum Products as submitted to Jurisdictional Agencies.

9.4 City May Investigate Any Leaks From Grantee's Facilities.

(a) In the event of a leak of Petroleum Products from Grantee's Facilities, if the City's Representative has a reasonable basis to be concerned about the safety or security of Grantee's Operations or Facilities in any location

which might impact the Aquifer, or the Well Head Influence zone, or endanger its citizens, or its property, including public water supply facilities within the Franchise Area, the City's Representative may seek an investigation by Jurisdictional Agencies, or request assurances or additional information from Grantee regarding its Facilities or Operations in the Franchise Area, including a third party evaluation pursuant to Section 7.5, as deemed necessary by the City's Representative. Any costs incurred by the City in seeking such an investigation, following a leak event, including employment of an expert consultant shall be considered as a recoverable administrative cost.

- (b) Supplementing other provisions, in the event of a leak, spill or rupture comprising an Emergency Incident in the Franchise Area where the cause is not reasonably apparent, Grantee shall take immediate steps to fully cooperate with all Jurisdictional Agency investigations, giving the City reasonable assurances and confirmation of these actions. All results of any non-privileged investigation shall be disclosed to the City Representative. The City may view all pertinent records and reports thereof. The City has the right to satisfy itself of the due diligence of such investigation. If the City reasonably deems the public water supply or the safety and security of its Wellhead Influence Zone area are in jeopardy, the City may demand that the occurrence be investigated by an independent pipeline consultant selected by City. Grantee shall be solely responsible for paying all of the reasonable costs and expenses incurred in investigating the occurrence and reporting any findings to Jurisdictional Agencies, up to a maximum amount of fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000) per incident for incidents up to ten barrels product loss and a maximum of \$100,000 for incidents over ten barrels involving a spill, leak, or rupture. Grantee shall meet and confer with the independent consultant following the consultant's investigation to address whether any modifications or additions to Grantee's Facilities may be warranted. In cases where Jurisdictional Agencies do perform an investigation, Grantee shall provide a copy of the results of any investigation within ten (10) days of receipt of such report.
- (c) If the independent pipeline consultant recommends that Grantee make modifications or additions to Grantee's Facilities, Grantee covenants to consider said recommendations in good faith. If Grantee declines to follow the consultant's recommendations, Grantee shall provide a Written report within 90 days to the City explaining its reasoning for not following said recommendations. The Parties agree to comply with the Dispute Resolution provisions of Section 13 contained herein to resolve any dispute over whether to follow the consultant's recommendations.

9.5 Emergency Flow Restricting Devices in Facilities - Remote Control.

- (a) Grantee has installed Emergency Flow Restricting Devices (EFRD) in its Facilities within the Franchise Area in the locations shown in Exhibit "C". All Emergency Flow Restricting Devices for Grantee's Facilities shall be remotely controlled from the Control Center and shall be capable of being instantly activated by Grantee.
- (b) <u>Emergency Flow Restriction Devices Location</u>. Grantee currently has EFRDs on either side of the Spokane River capable of manual and remote operation through its Control Center and in the vicinity of the City's Parkwater Well station near Felts Field municipal airport. These EFRDs shall continue to be maintained by Grantee during the term of the Franchise or so long as Grantee operates Facilities within the Franchise Area.
- (c) Grantee shall maintain adequate 24-hour emergency staffing immediately accessible by the City Fire Chief or the City Representative to activate said EFRDs in the case of an Emergency Incident involving Grantee's Facilities.
- 9.6 Responsibility of Grantee to Take Precautions to Avoid Leak, Spill, or Rupture. It remains the sole and separate responsibility of the Grantee, under the authority of this Franchise, to take adequate precautions to avoid Leaks, Spills or Ruptures that might result in the release of Petroleum Products from its Facilities, as required by all Environmental Laws and applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies, including, but not limited to, compliance with the requirements of RCW Chapter 19.122 (One Call System).

Section 10. Required Relocation of Facilities for Public Project

10.1 Public Project.

- (a) In the event that the City undertakes or approves the construction of any Public Project including by not limited to: changes to the grade or location of any water, sewer or storm drainage line, street or sidewalk, or undertakes any other Public Project and as a result, the City determines that the public health, safety, welfare, necessity, and/or convenience reasonably requires changes to, or the relocation of, the Grantee's Facilities in the Public Right-of-Way or on Public Property, then the Grantee shall make such changes or relocations as required herein at the Grantee's sole cost, expense and risk.
- (b) The City shall provide written notice to Grantee at least 180 days prior to commencement of any Public Project which requires relocation of Grantee's pipeline and/or Facilities.

(c) In the event the Grantee relocates or otherwise modifies its facilities at the direction of the City to accommodate a City Public Project, and the City thereafter abandons and does not complete the Public Project, the Grantee may invoke the Dispute Resolution Section Procedures and seek reimbursement for the reasonable and necessary costs incurred by the Grantee for the relocation or modification that it would not have otherwise incurred.

10.2 Relocation of Facilities by Grantee.

- (a) Prior to commencing construction on a Public Project affecting Grantee's Facilities, the City shall provide Grantee with copies of pertinent portions of the plans and specifications for the Public Project; and, upon request, Grantee shall, at its sole cost and expense, determine and identify for the City Representative the exact location of its Facilities potentially affected by the Public Project. Grantee shall promptly relocate such Facilities at Grantee's sole cost and expense to accommodate a Public Project if reasonably requested to do so by City; and shall similarly relocate its Facilities for any other projects at the request of the City, but in such case, Grantee may recover its reasonable expenses form persons other than the City responsible for the relocation request.
- (b) The City shall work cooperatively with the Grantee in determining a viable and practical route within which Grantee may relocate its Facilities, in order to minimize costs to the Grantee while meeting the requirements of the City's Public Project, and will, to the extent possible, provide an alternative Public Right-of-Way or Public Property for the relocation.
- (c) Grantee shall complete relocation of its Facilities so as to accommodate the requirements of the Public Project at least ten (10) calendar days prior to commencement of such Project or at such other time as the Parties may agree in Writing.
- (d) The Parties agree that the City's exact damages, because of delays by the Grantee, in compliance with this section are difficult to precisely quantify. If the City or its contractor is delayed at any time in the progress of the work on the Public Project by an act or neglect of the Grantee, or those acting for, or on behalf of, the Grantee, then Grantee agrees to pay the City liquidated damages as provided in Section 12.1. The requirement for payment of Liquidated Damages does not apply if the delays were caused by the acts of the City.
- 10.3 <u>Alternative Plan to Avoid Relocation of Facilities</u>. Grantee may, after receipt of Written notice requesting a relocation of its Facilities, submit to the City Representative Written alternatives to the relocation of Grantee's Facilities within forty five (45) calendar days of receiving the plans and specifications for the Public Project. The City shall evaluate the alternatives and advise Grantee in Writing if one or more of the alternatives are suitable to accommodate the requirements of the Public Project. The City Representative shall give each alternative proposed by Grantee full and fair consideration but retains full discretion and final authority to decide whether to utilize its original plan or an alternative proposed by Grantee.
- 10.4 Requested Relocation within 5 Years. If any portion of the Grantee's pipeline and/or Facilities that has been required by the City to be relocated under the provisions of this section is subsequently required to be relocated again within five (5) years of the original relocation, the City will bear the actual and reasonable cost of the subsequent relocation during the five (5) year period.

Section 11. Removal of Grantee's Facilities - Abandonment in Place.

11.1 Permanent Cessation of Use of Facilities.

- (a) In the event of Grantee's permanent cessation of use or abandonment of its Facilities, or any portion thereof, within the Franchised Area, the Grantee shall (except as may be permitted by Section 11.2), within one hundred and eighty days (180) after the abandonment or permanent cessation of use, remove its Pipelines and/or Facilities or any portion thereof, from the Public Right-of-Way or Public Property at Grantee's sole cost and expense.
- (b) A presumption of Grantee's abandonment or permanent cessation of use of Facilities arises after twelve months substantial non-use by Grantee of its Facilities as to that part of the Franchise Area concerned.
- (c) In the event of the removal of all or a portion of its Facilities, Grantee shall restore the Franchised Area as nearly as possible to as good or better condition as it was in before the installation of the Grantee's Pipelines and/or Facilities, in compliance with the City's current Pavement Cut Policies.
- (d) Such property restoration shall be done at the Company's sole cost and expense and to the City's Representative's satisfaction. Grantee shall be responsible for the payment of any costs of any environmental review required by for the removal of any Pipelines and/or Facilities from the Premises within the Franchise area.
- (e) If the Grantee fails to remove or secure the Pipelines and/or Facilities and fails to restore the Premises, or fails to take such other mutually agreed upon action, the City may, after reasonable notice to the Grantee, remove

the Facilities, restore the Premises, or take such other action as is reasonably necessary at the Grantee's expense, and the City shall not be liable therefore. This remedy shall not be deemed to be exclusive and shall not prevent the City from seeking a judicial order directing that the Facilities be removed.

11.2 Alternatives to Grantee's Removal of Facilities from Public Right-of-Way.

- (a) Upon abandonment or permanent cessation of Facilities, and with the Written consent of the City's Representative, as an alternative to Grantee's removal of the Facilities the Grantee may secure its underground Facilities within the Franchise Area or on other Public Property, rendering them safe and harmless, removing all Petroleum Products from the Facilities, purging vapors, displacing the contents of the pipeline with an appropriate inert material, and sealing Facility ends with a suitable end closure, all in compliance with Environmental Laws and the applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies.
- (b) Provided that portions of the Grantee's Facilities which are above ground shall be removed at Grantee's sole expense, except where approved, in Writing, by the City's Representative.
- (c) For permission for Grantee to abandon all, or substantially all, of the Grantee's Facilities within the Franchise Area, the City's consent must be expressed by a Resolution of the City Council, upon such additional conditions as may be prescribed therein.
- 11.3 <u>Grantee's Abandonment of Facilities Requirement of Bond.</u> The City's permission for Grantee's partial or complete abandonment of Facilities in place on the Premises within the Franchise Area may be conditioned upon Grantee's posting of a bond, in a form and with a surety subject to the City's reasonable approval, or other security approved by the City to cover any estimated future risks and reasonable likely costs to the City in dealing with Grantee's Facilities as abandoned on the Premises in the Public Right-of-Way or on other Public Property, including prevention or remediation of any environmental damage.
- 11.4 <u>Requirements of this Section Survives Franchise Termination</u>. The Parties expressly agree that the requirements of Section 11 shall survive the expiration, revocation, or termination of this Franchise.

Section 12. Violations, Remedies and Termination.

- 12.1 <u>City's Remedies for Violations</u>. The Grantee shall be in compliance with the terms of this Franchise at all times. In addition to any rights set forth elsewhere in this Franchise, or other rights it may possess at law or equity, the City reserves the right to apply any of the following remedies, alone or in combination, in the event Grantee violates any material provision of this Franchise.
 - (a) <u>Liquidated Damages for Delay</u>. The Parties agree that damages for delay in compliance with the requirements of this Franchise are difficult to ascertain and determine. If Grantee fails or refuses to comply with any condition of this Franchise, or any of its terms or provisions, the damages suffered by the City as a result may include, without limitation, increased costs of administration and other damages difficult to measure; therefore, City and the Grantee agree that liquidated damages of \$1,000 Dollars (One thousand dollars) per day, per incident or other measure of violation, may be assessed from the first day that the City notifies the Grantee of the occurrence of the violation or incident, so long as Grantee remains non-compliant. These liquidated damages represent both Parties' best estimate of the damages likely to result from such compliance delays and do not include compensation for municipal property damage, damage to the City facilities, water supply or other public resources or properties and other losses, nor for liability risks as typically protected by insurance. Grantee may invoke the Dispute Resolution provisions as provided in Section 13 of this Franchise in connection with imposition of damages by the City under this section, but this shall not stay the continued accrual of such damages.
 - (b) <u>Termination of Franchise</u>. The City may also terminate this Franchise if Grantee materially breaches or otherwise fails to perform, comply with, or otherwise observe any of the material terms and conditions of this Franchise, or fails to maintain all required licenses and approvals from Jurisdictional Agencies, and fails to cure any such breach or default within thirty (30) calendar days of City's Representative providing Grantee Written notice thereof.
 - (c) The above cited remedies are cumulative and not exclusive, and, the exercise of one remedy shall not prevent the exercise of another or any rights of the City at law or equity.
- 12.2 <u>Termination of Franchise Requires Vote of City Council</u>. This Franchise shall not be terminated except upon a majority vote of the full membership of the City Council, after reasonable notice to Grantee and an opportunity to be heard, provided that if exigent circumstances necessitate immediate termination, the hearing may be held as soon as possible after notice to Grantee of the termination by the City Representative. The Council may refer any portion of a dispute involving a potential termination of the Franchise to the City Hearings Examiner for hearing and recommendation.

12.3 Grantee's Termination of Franchise.

Grantee may terminate this Franchise upon 30-days' written notice to City.

12.4 Grantee's Obligations Upon Termination of Franchise.

- (a) In the event of termination of this Franchise, Grantee shall immediately discontinue Operation of its Facilities in the Franchise Area unless doing so creates an appreciable risk to human health, safety, or the environment, in which case Grantee shall discontinue Operations of its Facilities in the Franchise Area as quickly as it is able to do so without threatening human health, safety, or the environment, in accordance with a schedule approved by Jurisdictional Agencies.
- (b) Once the Grantee's rights to Operate in the Franchise Area have terminated, Grantee shall comply with the Franchise provisions regarding removal and/or abandonment of Facilities.
- (c) Either Party may invoke the Dispute Resolution provisions set forth in Section 13 of this Franchise, as it deems necessary with regard to termination. Alternatively, the City may elect to seek relief directly in Superior Court, in which case the Dispute Resolution requirements of Section 13 shall not be applicable.

12.5 Termination of this Franchise Shall Not Release Either Party From Liability.

- (a) Termination of the Franchise shall not release either Party from any obligation with respect to any matter occurring prior to such termination, nor shall such termination release Grantee from any obligation to remove or secure Grantee's Facilities on the Premises within the Franchise Area and to restore the Premises within the Franchise Area, including, but not limited to, Grantee's compliance with the terms of this Franchise regarding removal and/or abandonment of its Facilities, in accordance with Environmental Laws and the applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies.
- (b) The City's failure to exercise a particular remedy at any time shall not waive the City's right to terminate, assess penalties, or assert any other remedy at law or equity for any future breach or default by Grantee.
- 12.6 <u>Covenants in Franchise Enforceable in Court.</u> The Parties acknowledge that the covenants set forth herein are essential to this Franchise, and, but for the mutual agreements of the Parties to comply with such covenants, the Parties would not have entered into this Franchise. The Parties further acknowledge that they may not have an adequate remedy at law if the other Party violates such covenant; therefore, the Parties shall have the right, in addition to any other rights they may have, to obtain injunctive relief in Spokane County Superior Court to restrain any breach or threatened breach of Franchise terms, or to specifically enforce any of the covenants contained herein should the other Party fail to perform them.

Section 13. Dispute Resolution.

- 13.I <u>Resolution of Disputes by Franchise Administrators</u>. In the event of a dispute between City and Grantee arising by reason of this Franchise, or any obligation hereunder, the dispute shall first be referred to the operational officers or representatives designated by the City and the Grantee to have oversight over the administration of this Franchise. Said officers or representatives shall meet within thirty (30) calendar days of either Party's request for a meeting, and the Parties shall make a good faith effort to attempt to achieve a resolution of the dispute.
- 13.2 Resolution of Disputes by Mediation. In the event that the Parties are unable to resolve a dispute under the procedure set forth in Section 13.1, then the Parties hereby agree that the matter shall be referred to mediation. The Parties shall mutually agree upon a mediator to assist them in resolving their differences. If the Parties are unable to agree upon a mediator, the Parties shall jointly obtain a list of seven (7) mediators from a reputable dispute resolution organization and alternately strike mediators from that list until one remains. Any expenses incidental to mediation shall be borne equally by the Parties. If the dispute involves a matter previously mediated, the mediation process need not be repeated.
- 13.3 <u>Judicial Remedy</u>. If the Parties fail to achieve a resolution of the dispute through mediation, either Party may then pursue any available judicial remedies by filing an action in Spokane County Superior Court; provided that, if the Party seeking judicial redress does not substantially prevail in the judicial action, it shall pay the other Party's reasonable legal fees and costs incurred in the judicial action.
- 13.4 Grantee may continue to Operate Facilities within the Franchise Area during the Dispute Resolution Process, but this shall not affect either Party's right to seek injunctive relief to protect their interests in a court of competent jurisdiction in Spokane County.

Section 14. Indemnification.

14.1 <u>General Indemnification</u>. Except for environmental matters, which are covered by a separate indemnification, the Grantee shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its agents, officers, elected officials, or employees from any and all liability, loss, damage, cost, expense, and claim of any kind whether at law or in equity, including reasonable attorneys' and experts' fees incurred by the City in defense thereof, arising out of, or related to, directly or indirectly, the installation, Construction, Operation, use, location, testing, repair, Maintenance, Improvement, removal, or abandonment of Grantee's Facilities on the Premises within the Public Right-of-Way or on other Public Property within the Franchise Area under the authority of this Franchise, or from the existence of Grantee's Facilities in the Franchise Area, or from any leak, spill, rupture or other release of the Petroleum Products contained in, transferred through, or released from said Facilities, including the reasonable costs of assessing any such damages and any liability for costs of investigation, abatement, correction, cleanup, fines, penalties or other damages arising under any Environmental Laws or the applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies. If any administrative or judicial action is brought against the City by reason of the rights granted to Grantee for the Construction, Maintenance, Operation or Improvement of its Facilities within the Franchise Area under the terms of this Franchise Ordinance, Grantee shall defend the City, its agents, officers, elected officials, or employees at the Grantee's sole cost and expense. This general indemnification does not apply to the extent that any matters are shown to be proximately caused by the City's negligence or willful misconduct.

14.2 Environmental Indemnification.

- (a) Grantee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its agents, officers, elected officials or employees from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, actions or claims, either at law or in equity, for environmental damages arising out of, or related to, directly or indirectly, the installation, Construction, Operation, use, location, testing, repair Maintenance, Improvement, removal, or abandonment of Grantee's Facilities in the Public Right-of-Way or on other Public Property within the Franchise Area under the authority of this Franchise, including, but not limited to, costs and reasonable attorneys' and experts' fees incurred by City in defense thereof, arising directly or indirectly from:
 - (1) Grantee's breach of any Environmental Laws or the regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies applicable to the Grantee's Facilities; or
 - (2) Any release of Petroleum Products or other Hazardous Substances from the Grantee's Facilities within the Franchise Area; or
 - (3) Any other incident arising from Grantee's activities related to the rights granted under this Franchise including actions by Grantee, or its agents, contractors or subcontractors.
 - (b) This indemnity includes but is not limited to:
 - (1) Liability for any Governmental Agency's costs of removal of, or remedial action for, a leak, spill, rupture or release of Petroleum Products or other Hazardous Substances from Grantee's Facilities;
 - (2) Damages to natural resources caused by a leak, spill, rupture or other release of Petroleum Products or other hazardous substances from Grantee's Facilities, including the reasonable costs of assessing such damages;
 - (3) Liability for any other person's costs, including the City's (except for those excluded because they were not proximately caused by the City's negligence or willful misconduct as set forth in subsection (c), below), of responding to any leak, spill, rupture or other release of Petroleum Products or other Hazardous Substances from Grantee's Facilities;
 - (4) Liability for any costs of investigation, abatement, correction, cleanup, fines, penalties, or other damages arising under any Environmental Laws or the applicable regulations of Jurisdictional Agencies; and
 - (5) Liability for personal injury, property damage, or economic loss from the acts or omissions of the Grantee related to the City's grant of this Franchise or Grantee's Operation, Maintenance, Construction or Improvement of the Facilities arising under any statutory or common-law theory.
- (c) This environmental indemnification does not apply to the extent that any matters are shown to be proximately caused by the City's negligence or willful misconduct.
- 14.3 <u>Indemnity Obligations Survive Termination</u>. The indemnity provisions contained herein shall survive the expiration, revocation, or termination of this Franchise and shall continue for as long as the Grantee's Facilities shall remain in, or on, the Premises within the Franchise Area or until the Parties execute a new Franchise which modifies or terminates these indemnity provisions.

Section 15. Insurance and Bond Requirements.

15. Insurance Requirement.

- (a) During this Franchise, Grantee shall procure and maintain, at its sole cost and expense, from carriers with an AM Best's Financial Strength Rating of at least A- commercial general liability insurance, including sudden and accidental pollution in the minimum amount of One Hundred Million Dollars (\$100,000,000) for each occurrence and in the annual aggregate, in a form reasonably acceptable to the City. Insurance coverage shall include, but is not limited to, all defense costs. Grantee and City agree that, every five years following the effective date of this Franchise, either party may request in writing that both parties meet to discuss the continuing appropriateness of the Insurance Requirement and whether new circumstances merit an adjustment of the Insurance Requirement. The parties agree to meet and discuss this matter in good faith, but neither party is obligated to agree to an adjustment of the Insurance Requirement.
- (b) Grantee is permitted to self-insure a portion of the total amount of insurance required in Section 15.1(a), above, in an amount up to and including Twenty-five Million Dollars (\$25,000,000). In lieu of a policy of insurance, a portion or the entire amount of coverage above Grantee's self-insured portion may, at Grantee's option, be met by one or more Guarantees from Grantee's ownership interests, substantially in the form as the template Guaranty attached as Exhibit B. The Grantee shall notify the City of change of ownership of any of the Guarantees or insolvency of any Guarantee.
- 15.2 <u>Grantee to Provide Proof of Insurance</u>. Upon request, Grantee shall provide evidence of the coverage required in Section 15.1 in a form reasonably acceptable to City. Further, any policies of insurance procured and maintained by Grantee to satisfy the requirements in Section 15.1 shall, to the extent of Grantee's indemnification obligations herein of Grantor, show Grantor as an additional insured, provide a waiver of subrogation in favor of Grantor, and respond as primary to any insurance carried by Grantor. Further, such policies shall contain a provision that the policy shall not be canceled without a minimum of thirty (30) days prior Written notice to the City or otherwise is allowed under the terms and conditions of the policy.
- 15.3 Grantee is permitted to procure insurance from more than one carrier to meet the insurance obligations specified in Section 15.1(a), above. Insurance carriers are not required to be "admitted" in the State of Washington.
- 15.4 <u>Bond and Insurance Requirements Survive Termination</u>. The insurance and bond provisions contained herein shall be negotiated at the expiration, revocation, or termination of this Franchise and shall continue for as long as the Grantee's Facilities shall remain in, or on, the Premises within the Franchise Area or until the Parties execute a new Franchise Agreement which modifies or terminates these indemnity, insurance, and bond provisions.

Section 16. Receivership or Foreclosure of Grantee.

- 16.1 Notice to City Bankruptcy. Grantee shall immediately notify the City in Writing if Grantee:
- (a) files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, a voluntary petition to reorganize its business, or a voluntary petition to effect a plan or other arrangement with creditors; or
- (b) files an answer admitting the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court and the material allegations of an involuntary petition filed pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code, as amended; or
- (c) is adjudicated bankrupt, makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or applies for, or consents to, the appointment of any receiver or trustee of all or any part of its property including all or any parts of its business operations or Facilities within or affecting the Franchise Area.
- 16.2 <u>Notice to City -- Foreclosure</u>. Upon the foreclosure or other judicial sale of all, or a substantial part of, Grantee's business operations or Facilities within or affecting the Franchise Area, or upon the termination of any lease covering all, or a substantial part of, the Facilities within or affecting the Franchise Area, Grantee shall notify the City Representative of such fact.
- 16.3 <u>City's Right to Terminate Franchise Upon Appointment of Receiver</u>. The City shall have the right to cancel this Franchise one hundred twenty (120) days after the appointment of a receiver or trustee to take over and conduct the business of a Grantee, whether in receivership, reorganization, bankruptcy, or other action or proceeding, unless such receivership or trusteeship shall have been vacated prior to the expiration of said one hundred twenty (120) days, or unless:
 - (a) Within one hundred twenty (120) days after the election or appointment, such receiver or trustee shall have fully complied with all of the provisions of this Franchise and remedied any existing violations and/or defaults; and

- (b) Within said one hundred twenty (120) days, such receiver or trustee shall have executed an agreement, duly approved by the court having jurisdiction, whereby such receiver or trustee assumes and agrees to be bound by each and every provision of this Franchise granted to the Grantee except where expressly prohibited by applicable provisions of State or Federal law.
- 16.4 <u>City's Right to Seek Injunctive Relief</u>. Nothing in this Section shall limit the ability of the City to seek emergency or injunctive relief against Grantee if it deems the City water supply, Wellhead or Aquifer to be in significant danger or jeopardy. Such action shall not be an election of remedies but shall preserve all other remedies in addition, at contract, law, or equity.

Section 17. Annual Franchise Fee and Costs.

17.1 <u>Franchise Fee</u>. In consideration for granting this Franchise to Grantee and for the use of the Premises within the Franchise Area, there is hereby established an annual Franchise Fee equal to Twenty- five Thousand Dollars/year (\$25,000).

The annual Franchise Fee shall remain constant for the first five (5) years of this Franchise and shall then subsequently be increased every year by the national Consumer Price Index for Urban Consumers (CPI-U) as published in January of that year, or at a rate of 1.5%, whichever is greater.

- 17.2 <u>Fee Payment in Installments</u>. The first installment shall be paid at the time Grantee accepts this Franchise and shall cover the next twelve (12) months. Each succeeding installment shall cover the next twelve (12) month period and shall be paid not later than the anniversary date of the Effective Date of this Franchise.
- 17.3 <u>Interest on Late Payments</u>. Interest shall accrue on any late payment of the Franchise Fee at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum. Such interest shall be in addition to any applicable and customary penalties for late payment. Any partial payment shall first be applied to any applicable and customary penalties, then interest, and then to principal.
- 17.4 The Franchise Fee set forth above, does not include standard and customary payments associated with the City's administrative expenses incurred in reviewing, licensing, permitting, or granting any other approvals necessary for the Grantee to Operate, Maintain, Construct or Improve its Facilities, or for any inspection or enforcement costs thereunder (i.e. customary permitting fees). Additionally, the foregoing annual fee does not include any generally applicable taxes that the City may legally levy.

Section 18. Legal Relations; Charter Requirements.

- 18.1 No Relationship Created by Grant of Franchise. Nothing contained in this Franchise shall be construed to create an association, trust, partnership, agency relationship, or joint venture between the City and Grantee, or to impose a trust, partnership, or agency duty, obligation or liability on, or with regard to, either Party. Each Party shall be individually and severally liable for its own duties, obligations, and liabilities under this Franchise.
- 18.2 <u>No Warranty by City</u>. The Grantee accepts any privileges granted hereunder by the terms of this Franchise for the installation of its Facilities on the Premises within the Public Right-of-Way and on other Public Property within the Franchise Area in an "as is" condition. Grantee stipulates and agrees that the City has never made any representations, or any implied or express warranties or guarantees as to the suitability, security, or safety of the Premises for Grantee's location of its Facilities or any representations as to possible hazards or dangers arising from other uses of the Premises by the City, the general public, or other utilities. As between the City and the Grantee, the Grantee shall remain solely and separately liable for the operation, testing, Maintenance, Construction, Improvement, replacement, and/or repair of the Facilities or other activities permitted hereunder.
- 18.3 Workers' Compensation Immunity Waiver. Grantee waives immunity under Title 51 RCW in any cases involving the City and affirms that the City and Grantee have specifically negotiated this provision, to the extent it may apply.
- 18.4 <u>Franchise Creates No Duty on City</u>. This Franchise shall not create any duty of the City or any of its officials, elected officials, employees or agents and no liability shall arise from any action or failure to act by the City or any of its officials, elected officials, employees or agents in the exercise of powers reserved to the City. Further, this ordinance is not intended to acknowledge, create, imply or expand any duty or liability of the City with respect to any function in the exercise of its police power or for any other purpose. Any duty that may nonetheless be deemed to be created in the City shall be deemed a duty to the general public and not to any specific party, group or entity.
- 18.5 Supplementing and not by way of limitation of other provisions, the City reserves all rights under its City Charter and as allowed by applicable provisions of Federal and State law, including expressly those conditions stated in Sections 106, 107 and 108, of the City Charter as applicable.
- 18.6 Grantee may not issue any capital stock on account of the Franchise or the value thereof and shall have no right to receive any return on account of the Franchise or its value.

18.7 As applicable, the Franchise and all things constructed thereunder shall be subject to common use by any other grantee or assignee of any other franchise, whenever there shall be necessity therefor, upon payment or tender of compensation for such use. The question of necessity, compensation and all other questions relating thereto, shall be judicial questions, but no judicial proceeding shall suspend or postpone such use if the person or corporation desiring such common use shall deposit in the court such sums as the court, in a preliminary hearing may determine.

Section 19: Miscellaneous.

- 19.1 <u>Interpretation and Venue</u>. This Franchise shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington and the Parties agree that in any action, except for actions based on Federal questions, that jurisdiction and venue shall lie exclusively in the Superior Court of Spokane County, Washington. For any Federal judicial action involving the rights granted under this Franchise, venue shall lie in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Washington.
- 19.2 <u>Amendment or Modification of Franchise</u>. In the event that a court of competent jurisdiction declares a material provision of this Franchise to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the Parties shall negotiate in good faith and agree, to the maximum extent practicable in light of such determination, to make such amendments or modifications to the Franchise as are appropriate actions so as to give effect to the intentions of the Parties as reflected herein. If severance from this Franchise of the particular provision(s) determined to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable will fundamentally impair the value of this Franchise, either Party may bring an action in the Spokane County Superior Court to reform or reconstitute the Franchise so as to recapture the original intent of said particular provision(s). All other provisions of the Franchise shall remain in effect at all times during which negotiations or a judicial action remains pending.
- 19.3 <u>Time is of the Essence</u>. Whenever this Franchise sets forth a time for any act to be performed, such time shall be deemed to be of the essence, and any failure to perform within the allotted time may be considered a material violation of the requirement of this Franchise. Where no specific time is specified, performance shall be made in a reasonable time, and for such performance, time is also of the essence.
- 19.4 Effect of Force Majeure. In the event that Grantee is prevented or delayed in the performance of any of its obligations under this Franchise by reason(s) beyond the reasonable control of Grantee, performance shall be excused during and to the extent of such Force Majeure occurrence. Upon removal or termination of the Force Majeure occurrence the Grantee shall promptly perform the affected obligations in an orderly and expedited manner under this Franchise or procure a substitute for such obligation or performance that is reasonably satisfactory to City. Grantee shall not be excused by mere economic hardship, or by the misfeasance or malfeasance of its directors, officers, or employees or any other conditions that might have been reasonably foreseen or avoided, with the exercise of reasonable care and diligence.

19.5 Section Headings.

- (a) The Section headings in this Franchise are for convenience only, and do not purport to and shall not be deemed to define, limit, or extend the scope or intent of the Section to which they pertain.
 - (b) This Franchise is expressly subject to the terms of the Spokane City Charter and Article XI thereof.
- 19.6 <u>No Third Party Liability</u>. By entering into this Franchise, the Parties expressly do not intend to create any obligation or liability, or promise any performance to any third Party, nor have the Parties created for any third Party any right to enforce this Franchise.
- 19.7 <u>Successors and Assignees Bound by Franchise</u>. This Franchise and all the provisions shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the respective successors and permitted assignees of the Parties.
- 19.8 <u>Notice Requirements</u>. Whenever this Franchise calls for notice to or notification by any Party, the same (unless otherwise specifically provided) shall be in Writing and directed to the recipient at the address set forth in this Section, unless written notice of change of address is provided to the other Party. If the date for making any payment or performing any act is a legal holiday, payment may be made or the act performed on the next succeeding business day which is not a legal holiday.

Notices shall be directed to the Parties as follows:

To the City: To the Grantee:
Representative Real Estate Services
808 W. Spokane Falls Blvd. PO Box 7500
Spokane, WA 99201 Bartlesville, OK

- 19.9 <u>Authority of Parties to Execute Franchise</u>. The Parties each represent and warrant that they have full authority to enter into and to perform this Franchise, that they are not in default or violation of any permit, license, or similar requirement necessary to carry out the terms hereof, and that no further approval, permit, license, certification, or action by a Jurisdictional Agency is required to execute and perform this Franchise, except such as may be routinely required and obtained in the ordinary course of business.
- 19.10 <u>Franchise Supersedes All Previous Agreements</u>. This Franchise and the attachments hereto represent the entire understanding and agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter and it supersedes all prior oral negotiations between the Parties. This Franchise can be amended, supplemented, modified, or changed only by an agreement in writing which makes specific reference to the Franchise or the appropriate attachment and which is signed by both Parties. No waiver of any provision of this Franchise shall be effective unless reduced to writing and signed by the Party granting the waiver. All previous franchise agreements between the Parties pertaining to Grantee's Construction, Maintenance, Improvement or Operation of its Facilities within the Franchise Area are hereby superseded.

19.11 Purpose of Franchise; Acceptance of Franchise.

- (a) The purpose of this Franchise is to grant Grantee the right to Operate, Maintain, Construct and Improve its Facilities in the Franchise Area and to assure the City protection against liability or loss in connection with Grantee's enjoyment of the Franchise, including loss or damage to the public water supply, City Wellhead area or Aquifer contamination. This Franchise shall be liberally construed to accomplish these purposes.
- (b) Grantee shall, within thirty (30) days after passage of this Ordinance, file with the City Clerk, its unconditional Written acceptance of all the terms and conditions of this Franchise. If Grantee shall fail to so file its Written acceptance within such period, then the rights and privileges granted hereunder shall be deemed forfeited.
- 19.12 Effective Date. The Effective Date of this Franchise shall be the __ day of _______, 2022, after passage, approval and legal publication of this Ordinance as provided by law, and provided it has been duly accepted by Grantee as herein above provided. On that date, the rights, duties and obligations shall come into effect and the date from which the time requirement for any notice, extension and/or renewal will be measured. The City has made no effort to verify that Grantee compliance, and waives no existing deficiencies at the time of Franchise approval.

UNCONDITIONAL ACCEPTANCE BY GRANTEE

I, the undersigned official of Yellowstone Pipe Line Company, am authorized to bind Yellowstone Pipe Line Company and to unconditionally accept the terms and conditions of the foregoing Franchise (Ordinance No. C), which are hereby accepted by Yellowstone Pipe Line Company this day of, 2022.
Yellowstone Pipe Line Company
By:
Name: Title:
Passed by City Council January 3, 2022 Delivered to Mayor January 10, 2022
Name: Title: Passed by City Council January 3, 2022

ORDINANCE NO. C36163

An ordinance amending Ordinance No. C36161, passed by the City Council December 13, 2021, and entitled, "An ordinance adopting the Annual Budget of the City of Spokane for 2022, making appropriations to the various funds of the City of Spokane government for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022, and providing it shall take effect immediately upon passage," and declaring an emergency.

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the 2022 budget Ordinance No. C36161, as above entitled, and which passed the City Council December 13, 2021, it is necessary to make changes in the appropriations of the American Rescue Plan Fund, which changes could not have been anticipated or known at the time of making such budget ordinance; and

WHEREAS, this ordinance has been on file in the City Clerk's Office for five days; - Now, Therefore,

The City of Spokane does ordain:

Section 1. That in the budget of the American Rescue Plan Fund, and the budget annexed thereto with reference to the American Rescue Plan Fund, the following changes be made:

- 1) Increase appropriation by \$13,665,000, funded from the city's direct allocation of the State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund of the American Rescue Plan Act.
- A) Of the increased appropriation, \$6,000,000 is provided solely for affordable housing projects in the city.
- B) Of the increased appropriation, \$2,000,000 is provided solely for a down payment assistance program for first-time homeowners with incomes below 80 percent of average median income.
- C) Of the increased appropriation, \$1,000,000 is provided solely for sub-area planning to increase housing along transportation corridors.
- D) Of the increased appropriation, \$300,000 is provided solely for an eviction legal defense and education program in the city.
- E) Of the increased appropriation, \$1,000,000 is provided solely for funding to childcare providers.
- F) Of the increased appropriation, \$1,000,000 is provided solely for employment support in the arts.
- G) Of the increased appropriation, \$1,120,000 is provided solely for play equipment and bathroom upgrades in city parks, prioritizing parks located in the lowest income census tracts.
- H) Of the increased appropriation, \$400,000 is provided solely for a construction pre-apprenticeship educational program targeted towards individuals involved in, or at risk of being involved in, the criminal justice system.
- Of The increased appropriation, \$300,000 is provided solely for an Equity Navigator Service to aid the City in ensuring that funds spent will serve our diverse and historically underserved communities to be spent before 12/31/2024.
- J) Of the increased appropriation, \$305,000 is provided solely for internal financial personnel to be used for the administration and execution of the city's direct aid share of the American Rescue Plan Act funding to be spent before 12/31/2024.
- K) Of the increased appropriation, \$120,000 is provided solely for services to be rendered from an outside firm to ensure the City is approving appropriately eligible projects/programs within the guidance set forth by the US Department of Treasury to be spent before 12/31/2024
- L) Of the increased appropriation, \$120,000 is provided for solely for Community Engagement and Project Coordinator personnel to assist Council and Administration in the American Recovery Plan Act spending.

Section 2. It is, therefore, by the City Council declared that an urgency and emergency exists for making the changes set forth herein, such urgency and emergency arising from the need to provide appropriation authority for "first-out" funding supporting housing, employment, a COVID-19 safe community, and administration support, and because of such need, an urgency and emergency exists for the passage of this ordinance, and also, because the same makes an appropriation, it shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its passage.

Passed by City Council January 3, 2022 Delivered to Mayor January 10, 2022

Job Opportunities

We are an equal opportunity employer and value diversity within our organization. We do not discriminate on the basis of race, religion, color, national origin, gender identity, sexual orientation, age, marital status, familial status, genetic information, veteran/military status, or disability status.

TAXES AND LICENSES SPECIALIST SPN 122 PROMOTIONAL

DATE OPEN: Monday, January 10, 2022 DATE CLOSED: Monday, January 17, 2022 at 4:00 p.m.

SALARY: \$49,485.60 annual salary, payable bi-weekly, to a maximum of \$69,572.16

DESCRIPTION:

Performs a variety of office and field work in the collection of delinquent taxes.

DUTIES:

- Responsible for coordinating collection of complex gambling taxes. Performs preliminary work on gambling tax
 and business license field audits as directed. Conducts field visitations, physically audits amusement games,
 gambling records, and activities on business premises. Inspects for current business, cabaret, and amusement
 game licenses. Compares payroll records with number of employees listed on business licenses. Collects
 necessary records for audit.
- Initiates contact with new businesses to license with City. Initiates collection proceedings and performs preliminary collection processes for delinquent business, gambling, cabaret, and amusement device licenses, as well as NSF Checks.
- Initiates frequent contact with delinquent businesses to resolve problems. Provides information about procedures and fees necessary to acquire licenses. Explains licenses, billings, rules, taxes and ordinances. Refers recalcitrant businesses to collection agency. Interacts with collection agency personnel to maintain collection files and to solve conflicts with customers whose accounts have been referred for collection.
- Prepares affidavits to file judgments, working closely with the City Legal Department. Testifies, as needed, in court proceedings to obtain judgments for non-payment of licenses and taxes.
- Maintains business contacts with personnel from other City and State agencies.
- Reviews accounts of businesses applying for Liquor Licenses to determine whether required licenses and tax payments are current and makes recommendation for approval or denial.
- Accounts for, and deposits, Gambling and Utility Tax Payments.
- Ensures the utility tax database in accurate and current. Performs research to determine potential businesses that are not paying utility taxes. Contacts businesses to ensure appropriate taxes are paid. Prepares, sends and tracks delinquent notices for late payments.
- Operates calculator, computer, and other office machines.
- Performs related work as required.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:

Promotional Requirements:

(Current City of Spokane employees may meet the promotional requirements. All promotional requirements must be met at the date of the examination.)

• Experience: Completion of two years of experience with the City Taxes and Licenses section in a lower classification; AND meet the open entry requirements.

Note: Current non-probationary City of Spokane employees within the line of progression who meet the open entry requirements may apply on a promotional basis, pursuant to Civil Service Rule VI, Section 5.

Open Entry Requirements:

(Open-entry applicants must meet all requirements when they apply.)

- *Education:* Two years of education at an accredited business school, junior college, or university, in accounting, business, or related field; **AND**
- Experience: Two years of experience in a field affording familiarity with auditing and collection techniques and procedures. Additional experience in auditing and collection may be substituted, on a year for year basis, for the education requirement.

EXAMINATION DETAILS:

Applicants must meet the minimum qualifications and pass the examination for this position to be eligible for promotion.

Qualified applicants are encouraged to apply immediately. All applicants must complete and submit a City of Spokane employment application online by 4:00 p.m. on the filing cut-off date.

Upon request, at time of application, City of Spokane will provide alternative accessible tests to individuals with disabilities that impair manual, sensory or speaking skills needed to take the test, unless the test is intended to measure those skills.

The examination will consist of a Training and Experience Evaluation (T&E) and performance evaluation (PAR), with scoring weight assigned as follows:

- T&E 80%
- PAR 20%

TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE EVALUATION DETAILS

You will receive a link to the Taxes and Licenses Specialist T&E, via email, prior to 9:00 a.m. Pacific time on Thursday, January 20, 2022. Please note that this email will be sent from FastTest (noreply@fasttestweb.com). The test will be available for log-in until 4:00 PM Pacific time on Tuesday, January 25, 2022.

- Copies of your college or university transcripts (unofficial transcripts are accepted) may be a required part of this application and will be used to verify that you meet the minimum qualifications, as posted on the job announcement.
- Responses to your T&E questions should be consistent with the information given in your application details.
 Answers are subject to verification.
- Failure to complete all of the questions or incomplete responses will result in a lower score; therefore, it is advantageous for you to provide a full and complete response to each supplemental question.
- Resumes or questionnaires uploaded as attachments will not be accepted in lieu of completing each question online.
- "See Resume" or "See above," etc., and copy/paste from a previous answer are not qualifying responses and will not be considered

TIP: It may be more efficient to develop your responses in a word processing document and then paste them into the online questionnaire to be submitted.

PROMOTIONAL EVALUATION DETAILS

The PAR should be administered by the employee's supervisor within the past year.

- The employee's most recent PAR is the Promotional Evaluation for this position.
- If the most recent PAR is expired (older than one year), the employee's payroll clerk and supervisor are notified. The supervisor is responsible for submitting an updated PAR to the HR department for approval prior to the closing date.
- If an updated PAR is not received by the closing date, the most recent PAR on file will be used, regardless of date administered.

Please contact our office at 509-625-6160 immediately if you have any difficulties submitting your application

TO APPLY:

An application is required for promotional applicants. Applications must be completed online at: http://my.spokanecity.org/jobs by 4:00 p.m. on the filing cut-off date. Copies of required additional documents may be attached to your application or submitted via any of the following:

- Email: <u>civilservice@spokanecity.org</u> with <u>Job Title Applicant Name</u> in the subject line of the email
- In person or mail to: Civil Service Commission, 4th Floor-City Hall, 808 W. Spokane Falls Blvd., Spokane, WA 99201
- Fax: (509) 625-6077

By order of the SPOKANE CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION, dated at Spokane, Washington, this 6th day of January 2021.

MARK LINDSEY
Chair
KELSEY PEARSON
Chief Examiner

AMENDMENT AMENDMENT AMENDMENT

LABORER II

SPN 502 (Announcement of 11/15/2021)

The above titled announcement is hereby amended to read:

Closing Date: January 31, 2022 4:00 PM

EXAMINATION DETAILS:

Candidates must meet the minimum qualifications and pass the examination for this position to be eligible for hire.

We encourage you to apply immediately. Online applications must be completed and submitted before 4:00 p.m. on the closing date.

Upon request, at time of application, City of Spokane will provide alternative accessible tests to individuals with disabilities that impair manual, sensory or speaking skills needed to take the test, unless the test is intended to measure those skills.

The examination will consist of a written test, with scoring weight assigned as follows:

Multiple-Choice Examination: 100%

EXAMINATION DETAILS:

Two methods of testing will be offered. Candidates will choose which method is best for them and self-schedule accordingly. Self-schedule notifications will be sent to candidates upon approval of application review.

- Written Testing will be conducted at City Hall on the following dates:
 - Applicants who apply and meet the minimum qualifications between Monday, November 15, 2021 and Tuesday, November 30, 2021 will test on December 7, 2021, at 9:00 a.m. or 1:00 p.m. Pacific Time in the Tribal Conference Room on the 1st floor.
 - Applicants who apply and meet the minimum qualifications between Wednesday, December 1, 2021 and Tuesday, January 4, 2022 will test on Tuesday, January 11, 2022, at 9:00 a.m. or 1:00 p.m. Pacific Time in the Tribal Conference Room on the 1st floor.
 - Applicants who applied and meet the minimum qualifications between Wednesday, January 5, 2022, and Monday, January 31, 2022 will test on Tuesday, February 8, 2022 at 9:00 a.m. or 1:00 p.m. Pacific Time in the Tribal Conference Room on the 1st floor.
- Online Remote Testing will be offered. Multiple-choice examination links with instructions will be emailed prior to 8:00 a.m. Pacific Time on the start dates and will expire at 4:00 p.m. on the due dates as listed below. Keep in mind that the test link will be emailed from FastTest (noreply@fasttestweb.com).
 - Applicants who apply and meet the minimum qualifications between Monday, November 15, 2021 and Tuesday, November 30, 2021 will test Thursday, December 2, 2021 through Tuesday, December 7, 2021
 - Applicants who apply and meet the minimum qualifications between Wednesday, December 1, 2021 and Tuesday, January 4, 2022 will test Thursday, January 6, 2022 through Tuesday, January 11, 2022
 - Applicants who applied and meet the minimum qualifications between Wednesday, January 5, 2022, and Monday, January 31, 2022 will test Thursday, February 3, 2022 through Tuesday, February 8, 2022.

NOTE: Remote examinees may begin the exam at any time during the test period; however, once you begin, you will have 1.5 hours to complete the examination. You may take the exam <u>only once</u> during the open recruitment period.

All examination results will be merged into one eligible list according to final ratings, pursuant to the Merit System Rules of the Civil Service Commission: Rule IV, Section 13 – Continuous Examinations.

The test may include such subjects as:

- Applied Technology
- Interpersonal Skills
- Organizational Awareness
- Safety & Occupational Hazards
- Teamwork
- Technical Competence
- Vehicle Operations.

Notice for Bids

Supplies, Equipment, Maintenance, etc.

RECYCLED MATERIALS – VALUE BLANKET

Wastewater Maintenance, Water & Hydroelectric Services, & Street Departments

ITB #5552-22

<u>Description</u>: The City of Spokane is seeking electronic bids for Recycled Materials - the Recycling of Dirt, Rock, Concrete, and Asphalt Debris and the Purchase of Recycled Dirt, Rock, Concrete, and Asphalt - to be used by the Wastewater Maintenance, Water & Hydroelectric Services, and Street departments. This business shall be awarded on a five (5) year value blanket.

<u>Bid Opening</u>: Sealed electronic bids will be accepted until **Monday**, **January 24**, **2022 at 1:00pm**. Bids will be publicly opened at 1:15pm. To participate in bid opening, please visit the City's website at https://my.spokanecity.org/administrative/purchasing/ for the link to attend virtually and the number to attend by telephone. All bid responses must be submitted electronically through the City of Spokane's bidding portal at https://spokane.procureware.com before the aforementioned deadline. Hard copy and/or late bids will not be accepted.

To view this solicitation and submit a bid response, you must be a registered supplier on the City's bidding portal at https://spokane.procureware.com. Solicitation documents will not be mailed, e-mailed, or provided in person. Once registered, you will also be added to the solicitation's distribution list for changes and/or modifications via email notification.

Questions must be submitted via our bidding portal to the 'Clarifications' tab under the applicable project number.

The City reserves the right to reject any and all submissions and to waive any informalities in the bidding. Special attention will be directed to the qualifications of the proposer when considering this contract. **Only firm submissions completed and submitted electronically will be tabulated**.

Samantha Johnson Purchasing Department

Publish: January 12 & 19, 2022

PERIODICAL